
 

 

 
 

Cherwell District Council, Bodicote House, Bodicote, Banbury, Oxfordshire, OX15 4AA 
www.cherwell.gov.uk 

 

Committee: Personnel Committee 
 

Date:  Thursday 30 September 2010 
 

Time: 6.30 pm 
 
Venue Bodicote House, Bodicote, Banbury, OX15 4AA 
 
Membership 
 

Councillor Victoria Irvine 
(Chairman) 

Councillor Rick Atkinson  
(Vice-Chairman) 

Councillor Ken Atack Councillor Russell Hurle 
Councillor George Parish Councillor G A Reynolds 
Councillor Chris Smithson Councillor Lawrie Stratford 
Councillor Rose Stratford Councillor Lynda Thirzie Smart 
Councillor Barry Wood  

 

AGENDA 
 
 
 

1. Apologies for Absence and Notification of Substitute Members      
 
 

2. Declarations of Interest      
 
Members are asked to declare any interest and the nature of that interest which 
they may have in any of the items under consideration at this meeting. 
 
 

3. Petitions and Requests to Address the Meeting      
 
The Chairman to report on any requests to submit petitions or to address the 
meeting. 
 
 

4. Urgent Business      
 
The Chairman to advise whether they have agreed to any item of urgent business 
being admitted to the agenda. 

Public Document Pack



 
 

5. Minutes  (Pages 3 - 6)    
 
To confirm as a correct record the Minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on 
2 June 2010. 
 
 

6. Paternity Leave Policy Update  (Pages 7 - 20)    
 
Report of Head of People and Improvement 
 
Summary 
 
To consider the Council’s policy in relation to paternity leave. 
 
Recommendations 
 
The committee is recommended: 
 
(1) To approve the Council’s revised paternity leave 
 
 

7. Volunteers Policy  (Pages 21 - 32)    
 
Report of Head of People and Improvement 
 
Summary 
 
To consider the Council’s policy in relation to volunteers. 
 
Recommendations 
 
The committee is recommended: 
 
(1) To approve the Council’s revised volunteer policy 

 
8. Job Evaluation  (Pages 33 - 42)    

 
Report of Head of People and Improvement 
 
Summary 
 
This report provides a detailed update in relation to the completion and 
implementation of the GLPC job evaluation scheme, and the implementation of a 
new pay structure and terms and conditions of employment with effect from the 1 
April 2010.   
 
Recommendations 
 
The Committee is recommended: 
 
(1) To resolve to note the contents of this report  

 



 
 
 

9. Staff Satisfaction Survey  (Pages 43 - 48)    
 
Report of Head of People and Improvement 
 
Summary 
 
In March 2010 the Council undertook its second full comprehensive staff survey. 
This report provides an opportunity for Members to comment on the proposed 
corporate action plan which can be found at appendix A.  
 
Recommendations 
 
The Committee is recommended: 
 
(1) To comment on the proposed corporate action plan in response to the MORI 

staff survey. 
 
 

10. Employment Statistics Qtr 1 - 2010/2011  (Pages 49 - 56)    
 
Report of Head of People and Improvement 
 
Summary 
 
This report details employment statistics, by Directorate, for information and 
monitoring purposes. 
 
Recommendations 
 
The Committee is recommended: 
 
(1) To resolve to note the contents of this report  

 
11. Business Case from the Joint Working Group for a shared senior 

management team between South Northamptonshire Council and Cherwell 
District Council  (Pages 57 - 204)    
 
Report of Joint Working Group 
 
Summary 
 
To consider the Business Case from the South Northamptonshire Council and 
Cherwell District Council Joint Working Group for a shared senior management 
team between South Northamptonshire Council and Cherwell District Council. 
 
Recommendations 
 
The committee is recommended to: 
 
(1) Note the business case. 
 
 



 

Information about this Agenda 
 
Apologies for Absence  
Apologies for absence should be notified to democracy@cherwell-dc.gov.uk or (01295) 
221587 prior to the start of the meeting. 
 
Declarations of Interest 
 
Members are asked to declare interests at item 2 on the agenda or if arriving after the 
start of the meeting, at the start of the relevant agenda item. The definition of personal 
and prejudicial interests is set out in Part 5 Section A of the constitution. The Democratic 
Support Officer will have a copy available for inspection at all meetings. 
 
Personal Interest: Members must declare the interest but may stay in the room, debate 
and vote on the issue. 
 
Prejudicial Interest: Member must withdraw from the meeting room and should inform 
the Chairman accordingly. 
 
With the exception of the some very specific circumstances, a Member with a personal 
interest also has a prejudicial interest if it is one which a Member of the public with 
knowledge of the relevant facts would reasonably regard as so significant that it is likely to 
prejudice the Member’s judgement of the public interest.   
 
Local Government and Finance Act 1992 – Budget Setting, Contracts & 
Supplementary Estimates 
 
Members are reminded that any member who is two months in arrears with Council Tax 
must declare the fact and may speak but not vote on any decision which involves budget 
setting, extending or agreeing contracts or incurring expenditure not provided for in the 
agreed budget for a given year and could affect calculations on the level of Council Tax. 
 
Queries Regarding this Agenda 
 
Please contact James Doble, Legal and Democratic Services james.doble@cherwell-
dc.gov.uk (01295) 221591  
 
 
Mary Harpley 
Chief Executive 
 
Published on Wednesday 22 September 2010 
 

 
 



Grade Band Salary Grade Band Salary Grade Band Salary

Pay grades and rates from 1 April 2010

Apprentice £ 7,800

Grade 1 a £13,000

b £13,500

c £14,000

d £14,500

Grade 5 a £20,500

b £21,000

c £21,500

d £22,000

e £22,500

Grade 9 a £34,500

b £35,500

c £36,500

d £37,500

e £38,500

Grade 2 a £14,500

b £15,000

c £15,500

d £16,000

e £16,500

Grade 6 a £22,500

b £23,500

c £24,500

d £25,500

e £26,500

Grade 10 a £38,500

b £39,500

c £40,500

d £41,500

e £42,500

Grade 3 a £16,500

b £17,000

c £17,500

d £18,000

e £18,500

Grade 7 a £26,500

b £27,500

c £28,500

d £29,500

e £30,500

Grade 11 a £42,500

b £43,500

c £44,500

d £45,500

e £46,500

Grade 4 a £18,500

b £19,000

c £19,500

d £20,000

e £20,500

Grade 8 a £30,500

b £31,500

c £32,500

d £33,500

e £34,500

Head of Service

a £55,000

b £60,000

c £65,000

A
g
e
n
d

a
 A

n
n
e
x

P
a
g
e
 1



P
a
g
e
 2

T
h
is

 p
a

g
e
 is

 in
te

n
tio

n
a
lly

 le
ft b

la
n
k



Cherwell District Council 
 

Personnel Committee 
 

Minutes of a meeting of the Personnel Committee held at Bodicote House, 
Bodicote, Banbury, OX15 4AA, on 2 June 2010 at 6.30 pm 
 
 
Present:  Councillor Rick Atkinson (Vice-Chairman, in the Chair) 

  
 Councillor Ken Atack 

Councillor Norman Bolster 
Councillor Russell Hurle 
Councillor George Parish 
Councillor G A Reynolds 
Councillor Lawrie Stratford 
Councillor Rose Stratford 
Councillor Lynda Thirzie Smart 
Councillor Barry Wood 
 

 
Apologies 
for 
absence: 

Councillor Victoria Irvine 

 
Officers: Mary Harpley, Chief Executive and Head of Paid Service 

AnneMarie Scott, Head of People and Improvement 
Stephanie Rew, HR Manager 
Natasha Clark, Senior Democratic and Scrutiny Officer 
 

 
 

3 Declarations of Interest  
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 
 

4 Petitions and Requests to Address the Meeting  
 
There were no petitions or requests to address the meeting. 
 
 

5 Urgent Business  
 
There was no urgent business. 
 
 

6 Minutes  
 
The Minutes of the meetings held on 10 March 2010 and 19 May 2010 were 
agreed as a correct record and signed by the Chairman. 
 
 

Agenda Item 5

Page 3



Personnel Committee - 2 June 2010 

  

7 Employment Statistics  
 
The Head of People and Improvement submitted a report which detailed 
employment statistics, by Directorate, for information and monitoring purposes 
for the period January to March 2010. The Committee was advised that there 
had been a peak in the number of leavers which was primarily due to 
redundancies and retirements from the expressions of interest process. The 
number of voluntary leavers remained low which was attributed to the current 
economic climate. 
 
In response to Members’ questions, the Head of People and Improvement 
advised the Committee that following changes in the Extended Management 
Team some posts would fall within different service areas in future 
employment statistics reports.  
 
Resolved 
 
That the contents of the report be noted. 
 
 

8 MORI Survey  
 
The Chief Executive gave a presentation which presented the headline results 
of the Employee Survey 2010 which was conducted by Ipsos MORI in March 
and April 2010.  
 
The Chief Executive reported that this was the second formal staff survey that 
the council had undertaken. The first was carried out in 2008 when a 
commitment was made to conduct a staff survey every two years. The 
response rate in 2010 had been 84% compared to 64% in 2008. The Chief 
Executive reported that the council had improved its position on almost every 
measure since 2008 and demonstrated some exceptionally strong results. 
 
The Committee discussed the contents of the presentation. Members 
commended officers for implementing actions to address areas of focus that 
had been identified in the 2008 staff survey and noted the need to build on 
these improvements and to add actions to address areas which had 
weakened or were below expected performance in the 2010 staff survey.    
 
The Chief Executive advised the Committee that she would be sending emails 
to all staff and Members containing links to the presentation to the Personnel 
Committee, the full survey report and the responses by team 
 
 

9 Exclusion of the Public and Press  
 
Resolved 
 
That, in accordance with Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, 
the press and public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of 
business, on the grounds that they could involve the likely disclosure of 
exempt information as defined in paragraphs 1, 3 and 4 of Schedule 12A of 
that Act. 

Page 4



Personnel Committee - 2 June 2010 

  

 
10 Extended Management Team Review  

 
The Chairman advised the Committee that this item had been deferred and 
would be considered at the Committee’s September meeting. 
 
 

11 Redeployment and Redundancy Procedures  
 
The Head of People and Improvement submitted a report which sought the 
Committee’s consideration of the council’s policies in relation to redeployment 
and redundancy. 
 
The Head of People and Improvement advised the Committee that the 
council’s current policies were developed and agreed to support the major 
organisational restructure in 2007. The Committee noted that it was 
necessary for the policies to be reviewed to ensure that the Council is able to 
respond flexibly and quickly to the changing economic environment. 
 
The Committee discussed the proposals presented in the report and agreed 
that the current polices should be reviewed in line with agreed consultation 
procedures and requested that the Head of People and Improvement bring 
revised policies to the Committee’s September meeting. 
 
Resolved 
 
(1) That potential changes to the redundancy and redeployment procedure 

be reviewed. 
 
(2) That an outline for consultation on changes with the employee side be 

agreed. 
 
 

The meeting ended at 8.00 pm 
 
 
 
 Chairman: 

 
 Date: 

 
 

Page 5



Page 6

This page is intentionally left blank



 

   

Personnel Committee 
 

Paternity Leave Policy Update 
 

30 September 2010 
 

Report of the Head of People and Improvement 
 

 
PURPOSE OF REPORT 

 
To consider the Council’s policy in relation to paternity leave. 
 
 

This report is public 
 

 
 
Recommendations 

 
The committee is recommended: 
 
To approve the Council’s revised paternity leave policy 

 
 
Executive Summary 

 
The revised paternity leave policy is attached at appendix 1.  

It had been a long-term aim of the previous Government to encourage 
fathers to take a more active role in their children’s upbringing and to enable 
both fathers and mothers to obtain a better balance between their family 
responsibilities and their working lives.  

In 2002 paternity leave was introduced but limited to two weeks’ paid leave. 
The right to additional paternity leave came into force on 1 April 2010 in 
relation to parents of children with a due date on or after 3 April 2011.  
 
Essentially it allows the mother of the child to return to work without taking 
her full year’s maternity leave and “donate” the remainder of her leave 
entitlement to the father, who can then take up to 26 weeks off work to care 
for the child.  
 
Week one of any period of paternity leave is paid at the employee’s usual 
rate of pay. Any subsequent weeks (up to a maximum of 25 weeks) is paid at 
the statutory rate – currently a maximum of £124.88 per week.  
 
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 7



 

   

As per previous legislation and guidance the Council’s current paternity leave 
policy only allows the father of the child to take a maximum of 2 weeks leave. 
The policy has therefore been updated to reflect the new legislation. The 
revised policy includes qualification requirements, pay details and the impact 
on terms and conditions of employment.  
 
 
 Proposals 
 
That the revised paternity leave policy is approved to ensure CDC is 
compliant with employment legislation. 

 
 Conclusion 
 
CDC promote its commitment to family friendly policies. With the ever 
changing employment law in relation to this area it is imperative CDC keep up 
to date with amendments to its policy. 

This policy has been through consultation with Unison and the staff 
consultation group.  
 
 
Key Issues for Consideration/Reasons for Decision and Options 

 
3.1 The Council has an obligation to ensure its policies and procedures 

remain up to date in relation to employment law 

The following options have been identified. The approach in the 
recommendations is believed to be the best way forward 
 
Option One Approve revised paternity leave policy 

 
Option Two Retain current policy – but face potential challenge 

 
 
Implications 

 

Financial: There are no financial implications in agreeing this 
policy and any volunteer requests will be considered 
by CMT on an individual basis.  

 Comments checked by Denise Westlake, Service 
Accountant, 01295 221982 

Legal: The policy must be updated to reflect the new 
legislation to avoid challenge. 

 

 Comments checked by Nigel Bell, Solicitor, 01295 
221687 

Page 8



 

   

 

Risk Management: The risk of not approving recommendations is not 
adhering to the new paternity leave legislation and 
associated legislation and may leave the Council 
open to legal challenge..  

 Comments checked by Rosemary Watts, Risk 
Management & Insurance Officer, 01295 221566 

 
Wards Affected 

 
None 
 
Document Information 

 

Appendix No Title 

Appendix 1 Revised paternity leave policy 

Background Papers 

None 

Report Author Anne-Marie Scott, Head of People and Improvement 

Contact 
Information 

01295 221731 

annemarie.scott@cherwell-dc.gov.uk 

 

Page 9



Page 10

This page is intentionally left blank



PATERNITY LEAVE 

1 Who to scheme applies to 

2 Entitlement to ordinary paternity leave

3 Entitlement to additional paternity leave

4 Notification

5 Variation or cancellation of additional paternity leave 

6 Death of the mother 

7 The contract of employment during additional paternity leave 

8 Contact with work during additional paternity leave 

9 Working during additional paternity leave 

10 Pay

 Ordinary Paternity Pay 

 Additional Paternity Pay  

 Non-entitlement to Statutory Paternity Pay

11 Terms and Conditions 

 Annual leave 

 Sickness absence 

 Local Government Pension Scheme 

 Standby allowance

12 Rights during and after Paternity Leave 

13 Return to work and redundancy 

Appendix 1 – Ordinary Paternity Leave Application Form

Appendix 2 – Additional Paternity Leave Application Form

Appendix 3 – Payment Claim Form 

Page 11



1 Who the scheme applies to 
Cherwell District Council's paternity scheme applies to employees due to become 
parents of children on or after 1 April 2011, regardless of the number of hours 
worked per week. 

The eligibility criteria are:  

 the man is the baby’ s biological father or the partner / husband of the 
mother

 the man has (or expects to have) responsibility for the baby’s upbringing 

 Appropriate notice has been given by completion of the self-certificate form 

The entitlement to leave is based on the relationship with the child's mother, so 
both paternity and adoption leave can also apply to partnerships of the same sex. 

Please contact Human Resources if you require further clarification regarding 
your eligibility.

2 Entitlement to Ordinary Paternity Leave 
All employees who meet the eligibility criteria are entitled to 1 week’s ordinary 
paternity leave. 

Employees who have completed 26 week’s continuous service by the 15th week 
before the baby is expected (Qualifying Week), or within 7 days of the issue of the 
adoption matching certificate, are entitled to 2 week’s ordinary paternity leave.

Ordinary Paternity leave can start from the date of the baby’s birth or any day of 
the following week but must be taken within 56 days of the date of birth, or in the 
case of adoption 56 days from the date of placement.

If the baby is born earlier than expected, then the leave must be taken within 
the period from the actual date of birth up to 56 days after the first day of the 
expected week of birth. 

3 Entitlement to Additional Paternity Leave 
Employees who meet the eligibility criteria and have completed 26 week’s 
continuous service by the qualifying week, or within 7 days of the issue of the 
adoption matching certificate, may be entitled to additional paternity leave if the 
child’s mother has returned to work early. 

Essentially a mother is able to donate up to 26 weeks of her untaken maternity 
leave to her partner for them to take care of the child. An individual entitled to 
additional paternity leave may take between 2 weeks and 26 weeks leave. 

Additional paternity leave must be taken in multiples of a week and must be 
taken as one continuous period. The leave cannot begin until at least 20 weeks 
after the birth of the child but must be taken before the child’s first birthday.

Page 12



4 Notification Requirements 
The employee has an obligation to inform their line manager of the intention to 
take ordinary paternity leave by the end of the qualifying week. The employee 
must provide the following details, by comleting and submitting the ordinary 
paternity leave notification form (Appendix 1): 

 the week the baby is expected  

 the start date of the leave to be taken

 the duration of leave to be taken.  

You cannot commence paternity leave or receive paternity pay before the baby is 
born. Therefore if the baby is not born by the approved date on the ordinary 
paternity leave application form then the date has to be changed to a new agreed 
date either after or on the date of the child’s birth. A new form should be 
completed as soon as possible, specifying the new date, and further approval 
sought.

An employee intending to take a period of additional paternity leave must inform 
their line manager at least 8 weeks before the leave start date. The employee 
must provide the following details, by completing and submitting the additional 
paternity leave notification form (Appendix 2): 

 the start and end date of the leave to be taken 

 a declaration from the employee that the purpose of the leave will be to 
care for the child 

 a declaration from the mother confirming she intends to return to work. 

If the agreed date of commencement of additional paternity leave is to be 
changed, a new form should be completed at least 28 days in advance of the 
new date of commencment, or as soon as is reasonable practicable if this is not 
possible.

5 Variation or Cancellation of Additional Paternity Leave 
An employee wishing to withdraw their request for additional paternity leave 
must notify their line manager as soon as reasonably practicable.

If it is not possible to accommodate the employees change of arrangements 
CDC may require the employee to start / remain on additional paternity leave as 
originally planned, but this period will not exceed six weeks from the date of 
notification. 

6 Death of the Mother 
The options an employee has for taking additional parternity leave are also 
available in the unfortunate event of the death of the child’s mother.

In this event the employee may take between 2 weeks and 52 weeks leave. 
Again the leave must be taken in multiples of a week and must be taken as one 
continuous period. The leave can be taken at any time from the mother’s death 
up to the child’s first birthday. 

Page 13



7 The contract of employment during additional paternity leave 
The contract of employment continues throughout your additional paternity leave 
unless you or the Council expressly end it or it expires (for example, temporary 
contracts).

8 Contact with work during additional paternity leave 
You and your employer are entitled to have reasonable contact with each other 
to ensure that you are kept up to date with departmental changes, vacancies 
and any other matters relevant to the employees of CDC.  The mode of contact 
is to be confirmed and agreed prior to the commencement of your additional 
paternity leave.  Contact during additional paternity leave does not bring that 
period to an end.  Reasonable contact does not constitute ‘work’ as described 
below, and would not therefore count towards the 10 days. 

9 Working during additional paternity leave  
For the purposes of this provision, ‘work’ is defined as any work done under the 
contract of employment and may include training or any activity undertaken for 
the purposes of keeping in touch with the workplace.  You may agree with your 
Line Manager to come to work for up to 10 days during your additional paternity 
leave without bringing that period to an end.  Working for part of a day will count 
as one day.

There is no statutory entitlement to these work days. Your manager cannot insist 
that you carry out any work and you have the right to refuse to work.  Equally, you 
cannot insist on being given any work to do. The additional paternity leave will not 
be extended due to the fact that you have carried out some work in this period. 

You will not lose your right to paternity pay as a result of working up to 10 days 
and you will be entitled to receive your salary pro rated for the days worked. To 
claim for hours worked you will need to submit a Payment Claim Form 
(Appendix 3).

10 Pay
Ordinary Paternity Pay: 
All employees have an entitlement to one week’s Ordinary Paternity Pay (OPP) 
regardless of length of service. OPP will be paid at a normal week’s pay rate.   

Employees who have completed 26 weeks’ continuous CDC service by the 
Qualifying Week are entitled to two weeks’ pay; one week of OPP and one week 
of Statutory Paternity Pay (SPP). 

SPP is a flat rate which is reviewed each year. Human Resources can confirm 
the current rate on request.

Additional Paternity Pay 
Employees who have completed 26 weeks’ continuous CDC service by the 
Qualifying Week are entitled to additional paternity pay providing the mother of 
the child is entitled to either Statutory Maternity Pay or Maternity allowance and 
she has returned to work before the end of her allowance period.  

Page 14



Additional paternity is paid at the same rate as SPP.  

Non Entitlement To SPP. 
If you are not entitled to receive SPP or if your circumstances change and you 
stop getting SPP Payroll will provide you with form SPP1 which states the 
reasons why the Council cannot pay you SPP.

An employee whose earnings are below the lower earnings limit for National 
Insurance purposes does not qualify for SPP however such employees may be 
entitled to other welfare benefits for which you should contact the Department for 
Work and Pensions, your local Social Security office or JobCentre Plus office. 

11 Annual leave 
Your entitlement to annual leave remains unaffected by additional paternity 
leave.  The amount of annual leave that you have accrued in the current leave 
year will be dependent upon the timing of your leave.   

Subject to agreement by your manager, you should ensure that you take 
your accrued annual leave prior to the commencement of your additional 
paternity leave.  The balance of annual leave can be taken following your return 
to work.

Should you resign during, or at the end of your additional paternity leave, you 
may be entitled to payment for the balance outstanding  (calculated as 1/12th of 
your annual leave entitlement for each completed month of service up to the date 
of your resignation). 

If you have chosen not to take the annual leave you have accrued prior to 
commencing your additional paternity leave then there is no facility to provide 
payment to you for that proportion of leave not taken.

Sickness Absence
If you are on sickness absence prior to starting a period of paternity leave, then 
the paternity leave should be postponed until you are well, and a new Paternity 
Leave Application Form should be completed. The 56-day period in which 
paternity leave should be taken will not be extended under these circumstances.  

If you are unable to attend work at the end of the paternity leave period due to 
sickness, the normal contractual arrangements for sickness absence will apply.

Local Government Pension Scheme 
Pension contributions will be deducted in the normal way from any payment you 
receive during your paternity pay period. 

Standby Allowance 
During the period of your paternity leave you will not be required to undertake 
standby duty and therefore you will not receive any standby payments. 

Page 15



12 Rights during and after paternity leave
A male employee who qualifies for paternity leave is entitled to: 

 return to the same job  

 return to the same terms and conditions of employment  

 not be subjected to a disadvantage, unfair treatment or dismissal.

Continuous service is unaffected by Paternity Leave.  

13 Return to work and redundancy 
If a redundancy situation has arisen either during your additional paternity leave 
or upon your return to work, you have the right to be offered a suitable and 
appropriate alternative vacancy, where there is one, with employment rights that 
are not substantially less favourable than you had before. 

Page 16



ORDINARY PATERNITY LEAVE 
APPLICATION FORM 

DECLARATION 

Surname       

First Name(s)       

Job Title       

Department       Post No       

You must be able to tick all three boxes below to qualify for Ordinary Paternity Leave and 
Statutory Paternity Pay.   

I declare that:- 

I am the baby’s biological father, or

I am married to the mother, or

I am in an enduring family relationship with the mother / adopter 

but am not an immediate relative 

I have responsibility for the child’s upbringing 

I will take time off work to support the mother / adopter or care for the child 

DATES FOR PAY AND LEAVE  

The baby is due on, or

The child is expected to start living with us on: 

I want to be away from work for one  / two  weeks and I 
would like my paternity leave and pay to commence on: 

Signed Employee:  

Signed Head of 
Service:

      

This form should be returned to Human Resources together with a copy  

of the MatB1 Certificate or Adoption Matching Certificate 

Page 17



ADDITIONAL PATERNITY LEAVE 
APPLICATION FORM 

EMPLOYEE DECLARATION 

Surname       

First Name(s)       

Job Title       

Department       Post No       

You must be able to tick all boxes below to qualify for Additional Paternity Leave and 
Statutory Paternity Pay.   

I declare that:- 

I am the baby’s biological father, or

I am married to the mother, or

I am in an enduring family relationship with the mother / adopter 

but am not an immediate relative 

I have responsibility for the child’s upbringing 

The purpose of this period of leave will be to care for the child 

I understand that making a false claim for additional paternity leave could constitute 
gross misconduct 

The baby was born on, or

The child started living with us on: 

I would like my additional paternity leave to start on: 

and finish on: 

Signed Employee:  

MOTHERS DECLARATION 

Surname

First Name(s) 

Address 

NI Number  

Page 18



You must be able to tick all boxes below to qualify for Additional Paternity Leave and 
Statutory Paternity Pay.   

I declare that:- 

The employee: 

is the baby’s biological father, or

is my spouse, or

and I are in an enduring family relationship 

but is not an immediate relative 

The employee has responsibility for the child’s upbringing 

The employee is (to my knowledge) the only person claiming additional paternity leave 
in respect of the child 

I am entitled to statutory maternity pay or maternity allowance 

I intend to return to work on       

Signed Mother:  

AUTHORISATION 

Signed Head of 
Service:

      

Signed Human 
Resources: 

      

This form should be returned to Human Resources

together with a copy of the child’s birth certificate 

Page 19



PATERNITY LEAVE 
PAYMENT CLAIM FORM 

EMPLOYEE DETAILS 

Surname       

First Name(s)       

Job Title       

Department       Post No       

DECLARATION 

I wish to claim for       hours, worked on       

These hours represent one day of the ten maximum that I can take without bringing my 
paternity leave to an end.

I understand that working for part of a day will count as one day.  This payment is made in 
addition to any Statutory Paternity Pay owed.

I have now worked days during my paternity leave

AUTHORISATION  

Signed Employee:  

Signed Head of Service: 

This form should be returned to Human Resources

Page 20



 

   

Personnel Committee 
 

Volunteer Policy  
 

30 September 2010 
 

Report of the Head of People and Improvement 
 

 
PURPOSE OF REPORT 

 
To consider the Council’s policy in relation to volunteers. 
 
 

This report is public 
 
 
 
Recommendations 

 
The committee is recommended: 
 
(1) To approve the Council’s revised volunteer policy 

 
 
Executive Summary 

 
The volunteer policy is attached at appendix 1.  

Volunteers provide an important resource for many organisations, and the 
recruitment and management should be treated the same as paid employees 
in many ways including insurance, health and safety, safeguarding and 
access to corporate information to ensure appropriate behaviour and 
advocacy of Council services.  

Cherwell District Council currently use volunteers for events such as leading 
Nordic Walking and Jogging groups but these are managed through external 
sports organisations at present.  The TIC/Museum have recently requested 
the recruitment of CDC volunteers but currently there is no policy in place to 
support managing the process so that: 

§ Agreement required via CMT to authorise the recruitment of Volunteers 
as there maybe additional cost implications for the service. 

§ Agreement is in place between CDC and the volunteer (template included 
in the policy) to agree times of work and to confirm that it will not be paid 
employment. 

§ The council has a responsibility for the Insurance cover and Health & 

Agenda Item 7

Page 21



 

   

Safety of its volunteers. 

§ There should be a central monitoring system in place so that we know 
how many volunteers we have at any current time and a copy of relevant 
paperwork. 

§ Monitoring in place to ensure safe working practises are in place and 
adhered to and we recruit safely in line with current legislation and CDC 
recruitment procedure.  

 
 Proposals 
 
To approve the recommended Volunteer policy or leave without a policy 
where the council would be left open to the risk if no agreement is in place. 

 

 
 Conclusion 
 
Volunteers can be an important source of additional resources however there 
are insurance, risk and resourcing implications in managing volunteers. It is 
therefore important that Cherwell District Council implements a standard 
process to safely recruit and manage its volunteers to avoid any future risk to 
the council. 

This policy has been through consultation with Unison and the staff 
consultation group.  
 
 
 
Key Issues for Consideration/Reasons for Decision and Options 

 
3.1 The Council has an obligation to ensure its policies and procedures 

remain up to date in relation to employment law 

The following options have been identified. The approach in the 
recommendations is believed to be the best way forward 
 
Option One Approval of the Volunteer policy 

 
Option Two Leave without a policy where the council would be 

left open to the risk if no agreement is in place. 
 

 

Page 22



 

   

 
Implications 

Financial: There are no financial implications in agreeing this 
policy and any volunteer requests will be considered 
by CMT on an individual basis.  

 Comments checked by Denise Westlake, Service 
Accountant, 01295 221982 

 

Legal: It is essential that the Council’s policies are clear and 
robust to avoid challenge. 

 Comments checked by Ross Chambers, Solicitor, 
01295 221690 

Risk Management: The risk of not approving recommendations is not 
adhering to the recruitment & Selection policy and 
associated legislation.  

 Comments checked by Rosemary Watts, Risk 
Management & Insurance Officer, 01295 221566 

  

 
Wards Affected 

 
None 
 
Document Information 

 

Appendix No Title 

Appendix 1 New volunteers policy and appendices  

Background Papers 

None 

Report Author Anne-Marie Scott, Head of People and Improvement 

Contact 
Information 

01295 221731 

annemarie.scott@cherwell-dc.gov.uk 

 

Page 23



Page 24

This page is intentionally left blank



VOLUNTEERS

1.  Introduction

The Council defines a volunteer as a person who gives their time, skills and experience 
freely without financial reward.  Volunteering may be for a limited time to complete a 
particular project or may be on an ongoing basis. 

2.  Status of Volunteers 

A volunteer is not an employee of Cherwell District Council and therefore will not 
have a contract of employment.  Cherwell District Council will agree a role with the 
volunteer but will not be contractually bound.   

Volunteers should not be used to do a job normally carried out by a paid member of 
staff, on a permanent basis, where if they left another paid member of staff would 
need to be employed

3.  Recruitment of Volunteers 

CMT will need to agree any recruitment of volunteers with a completed business case. 

The full recruitment and selection process should be followed for volunteers.  The 
successful candidate/s will only be able to start when we have received the following: 

 Medical clearance 
 Two satisfactory references 
 CRB clearance (if working with vulnerable service users). 

Please refer to the recruitment policy for further information.

4.  Volunteer Agreement 

Each volunteer will be issued with a Volunteer Agreement establishing the specific work 
they will be undertaking. It will also identify what Cherwell District Council agrees to:  

 Recruit in line with CDC’s recruitment policy 
 Arrange a meeting with the event organiser to discuss work instructions 
 Ensure each new volunteer has an induction 
 Give all volunteers a named person as their main point of contact. The named person 

will be a CDC employee and be responsible for providing regular supervision to feed 
back on progress, discuss future development and air any problems. 

 Provide training to be able to carry out the event 
 Keep a hard copy of all risk assessments 

Volunteer’s role 

A meeting will be held with the volunteer to discuss the requirements of the role. At this 
point the volunteer will be asked to sign a volunteer agreement issued by the department. 

On commencing work the volunteer will be given a copy of: 

 the volunteer agreement 

Page 25



 the Volunteers policy 
 the Health & Safety policy 
 The Employee Code of Conduct 
 The Equal Opportunities Policy 

The volunteer needs to ensure they are clear about the role they will have and report any 
concerns to the events organiser. 

CRB Clearances 

Depending on the nature of the volunteer role the prospective volunteer will be 
required to undergo a CRB check if working with vulnerable service users.

The Criminal Records Bureau does not charge for clearance of volunteer staff. 

If volunteers have a current CRB that is in another company name then this will be 
sufficient. 

Training

Appropriate training will be agreed and organised by the event organiser. 

Induction

The event organiser will conduct the induction of new volunteers and tailor it to meet the 
needs of the service and volunteer. 

Expenses

No expenses will be paid unless otherwise agreed by the organiser. 

Insurance cover 

Cherwell District Council volunteers are covered by our Public Liability Insurance should 
anything happen to them or to service users.   

Volunteers should not be expected to use their own vehicle whilst carrying out their 
duties as a volunteer as they will not be covered under the council’s insurance. 

Please contact Rosemary Watts for further information. 

Health & Safety/Risk Assessments 

Volunteer leaders should be made aware of Cherwell District Councils Health & Safety 
Policy.

Event leaders are all required to take registers and risk assess their activities and the 
event organiser should keep hardcopies at all times. 

Confidentiality and Code of Conduct  

Where applicable, volunteers will be bound by the same requirements for code of 
conduct and confidentiality as paid employees. 

Supervision and Support 

Volunteers should be given contact details of the organiser incase they encounter any 
problems.

Equal Opportunities 

Page 26



Cherwell District Council operates an equal opportunities policy in respect of both paid 
staff and volunteers. Volunteers will be expected to have an understanding of and 
commitment to our equal opportunities policy. 

5.  Template of agreement 

Please see appendix A 

6.  Volunteer Declaration Form 

Please see appendix B 

7.  Volunteer Application Form 

Please see appendix C 

Page 27



APPENDIX A 

Volunteer Agreement

 Voluntary Agreement between  (volunteer) and  

  (name & department) at  Cherwell District Council 

This agreement is in honour only and is not intended to be a legally binding contract of 
employment. 

We value volunteers and hope you enjoy your role with us.  We will: 

 Induct you and explain your role fully 
 Provide training required to carry out your role as agreed 
 Advise who your event organiser will be 
 Insure you against injury you suffer or cause due to negligence 
 Provide you with a copy of our Health & Safety, Code of Conduct, Volunteers and Equal 

Opportunities policies 
 Provide you with our Complaints Procedure  

We expect all volunteers to: 

 Work reliably to the best of your ability 
 Help ensure that the events are delivered as safe and efficiently as possible 
 Give the organiser as much notice as possible if you cannot work as expected 
 Follow Cherwell District Councils rules and procedures fully 
 Act as a representative of Cherwell District Council 
 Leaders to complete all risk assessments and registers and provide the organiser with hard 

copies

Please sign and return one copy to People and Improvement and the other to the event organiser 
at Cherwell District Council, Bodicote House, White Post Lane, Bodicote, Oxfordshire, OX15 4AA 

Name   

Signature   

Date   

Page 28



APPENDIX B 

Volunteer Declaration 

(To be completed by the volunteer) 

I  Undertake to volunteer for the tasks detailed above.  I will  

not undertake any additional tasks without consulting  (supervisor) and

without completing an additional agreement. 

I agree to volunteer on the following days at the following times: 

Week commencing    to   

 Monday  to  and  to   

 Tuesday  to  and  to   

 Wednesday  to  and  to   

 Thursday  to  and  to   

 Friday  to  and  to   

 Saturday  to  and  to   

 Sunday  to  and  to   

I agree, if possible, to give …….. days notice if I will be unable to attend at the stated times. 

I agree to co-operate in all appropriate risk assessments on myself and the tasks I will be doing 
and to abide by all Health & Safety requirements. 

I agree to sign a confidentiality agreement, abide by the relevant policies and procedures of 
Cherwell District Council. 

Name  (volunteer) 

Signature   

Date   

Page 29



APPENDIX C 

VOLUNTEER APPLICATION FORM 

PLEASE WRITE IN CAPITALS IN BLACK INK
PLEASE REFER TO GUIDANCE NOTES FOR CANDIDATES BEFORE 

COMPLETING THIS FORM

PERSONAL DETAILS 

Surname Forenames  

Full
Address

Postcode

Home Tel 
N

Mobile No

Email
Add
If you can be contacted during the day by telephone please give number  

Are you related to any Elected Members or employees of Cherwell District 
Council?

Yes No

If YES please give name(s) and relationship  

Do you have a current driving licence?      
Yes No

If Yes Licence Status   Full     Prov

If you have a disability which you wish to be taken into account in the recruitment process, please give
brief details on a separate page.  You are not required to declare any disability that you may have at this 
stage of the recruitment process.    

CURRENT EMPLOYMENT

Job Title  

Department    

Please give a brief description of your major duties and responsibilities: 

Page 30



APPENDIX C 

PREVIOUS  EMPLOYMENT

DatesEmployer

From To

Post Title and Nature of Duties 

   

RELEVANT EXPERIENCE AND SKILLS 
Using the person specification to guide you, please give details of any experiences and skills that you feel are 
relevant to the post.  Include, if appropriate, details of experiences and skills gained in previous roles and any 
other areas such as temporary work, voluntary work, studies or spare time activities. 

You may continue on a separate sheet if necessary  

Page 31



APPENDIX C 

DECLARATIONS

Rehabilitation of Offenders Act 1974.  Candidates need not give details of spent offences except where the post is 
exempt from the Rehabilitation of Offenders Act 1974.  If you are applying for a post which is exempt from the 
Rehabilitation of Offenders Act 1974 this will be specified in the job details and a criminal record check through the 
Criminal Records Bureau may be required before an appointment is confirmed. 

Have you any unspent criminal convictions Yes    No If YES,  please give brief details below:- 

Date Nature of offence 

Court 

Sentence

I understand that a medical examination may be necessary in connection with this post and that appointment is subject 
to satisfactory medical clearance. 

I declare that the information given in this application is to the best of my knowledge true and complete. 

Data Protection Act 1998 

Cherwell District Council will use the information you have given for recruitment and employment purposes and may, 
under it’s duty to protect the public funds it administers, use the information for the prevention, detection and 
investigation of fraud.  

The Council will not share the information with any other organisation outside the Council unless it is permitted or 
required by law to do so, and will then act only in accordance with a procedure agreed with that other organisation. 

By returning this form to the Council you consent to it processing sensitive personal data about you. You have the 
right to ask for a copy of the information we hold about you and to correct any inaccuracies in your information; we 
charge a fee when you apply to do this. If you wish to obtain a copy of the information the Council holds you should 
write to the Head of Legal & Democratic Services, Cherwell District Council, Bodicote House, Bodicote, Banbury, 
Oxfordshire, OX15 4AA. 

Signed  __________________________________________  Date _________________________  

Please return completed form, in an envelope marked CONFIDENTIAL, to:

Human Resources, Cherwell District Council, Bodicote House, Bodicote, BANBURY, Oxfordshire, OX15 4AA 

Receipt of this form will not be acknowledged unless you enclose a stamped addressed envelope or telephone for confirmation.

Page 32



 

   

Personnel Committee 
 

Job Evaluation 
 

30 September 2010 
 

Report of Head of People & Improvement 
 
 
 

PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
This report provides a detailed update in relation to the completion and 
implementation of the GLPC job evaluation scheme, and the implementation 
of a new pay structure and terms and conditions of employment with effect 
from the 1 April 2010.   
 
 

This report is public 
 

 
Recommendations 

 
The Committee is recommended: 
 
To resolve to note the contents of this report  

 
 
Executive Summary 

 
Introduction 

The Council commenced job evaluation in September 2008, following a requirement under the 
1997 Single Status Agreement and 2004 National Agreement to do so. An implementation 
date of 1 April 2010 was agreed taking into consideration the need to gain National Unison 
sign off prior to implementation.   

 

Agenda Item 8

Page 33



 

   

 
The Greater London Provincial Council JE Scheme 
 

The Council selected to use the GLPC job evaluation scheme (Greater London Provincial 
Councils) following a selection process using the local Unison Branch Executive and the staff 
consultation group during September 2008. The decision was based on best fit to the posts 
Cherwell needs to evaluate along with an ease of understanding of the scheme. 

The GLPC scheme is based on evaluation of 11 factors consisting of the following: 
 

Supervision & Management of People 

Creativity & Innovation 

Contacts & Relationships 

Decisions – Discretion 

Decisions - Consequences 

Resources 

Work Demands 

Physical Demands 

Working Conditions 

Work Context 

Skills & Knowledge  
 
Staff and managers were required to provide updated job descriptions and person 
specifications as well as Job Description Questionnaires for each post to allow 
evaluations to take place. The Job Evaluation team evaluated 271 jobs between 
January 2009 and July 2009. The posts were all given a total points score based on 
assessment of the 11 scheme factors, and once all posts had been evaluated a rank 
order of jobs was produced.  
 
Pay Structures And Terms And Conditions  
The points score gained from using the job evaluation scheme were required to be 
able to model pay structures to determine the impact both on employees individually 
but also to determine the financial impact of any proposed option. £516,000 had been 
previously set aside to deal with any increase in the pay bill as a result of changes to 
the pay structure. This process of pay modelling took between August 2009 and 
December 2009. At the end of this time management held negotiations with trade 
unions to agree a single proposed pay structure. The new pay structure is an 11 grade 
incremental structure with five incremental points within each grade. There are also 
four single salary grades for Heads of Service and Apprentices. (The Chief Executive 
and Strategic Directors were excluded from the job evaluation project).  
The lease car scheme was also removed during 2009 as well as a car cash equivalent 
payment as both were linked to the old grade structure and proved to be inequitable 
as was not available to all staff.  
 
Ballot and Unison Sign Off 
The draft pay structure required a yes vote as a result of a local ballot and National 
Unison sign off. Both were undertaken in March 2010 and agreed.  
 

Page 34



 

   

 

Job Evaluation Outcomes 
Staff were informed of individual outcomes and proposals by letter on the 2 February 
2010. Of the 536 staff in post at the time, 62 were to lose salary (red circles), 214 
would stay around the same (white circles) and 260 would see an increase in salary 
(green circles). 
 
Reviews And Appeals 
All staff were entitled to place a request for the post to be reviewed and finally 
appealed against the job evaluation outcomes. A two stage process was agreed, with 
a review taking place first which involved a trade union representative and the Job 
Evaluation Project Manager reviewing the evaluation of the post. If the member of staff 
still believed the outcome was incorrect a formal appeal could be lodged. The appeal 
being heard by a panel of four, including a Chairperson who had been previously 
uninvolved as well as a trade union representative and two HR representatives. All of 
the reviews and appeals were completed in early July 2010, and this process is now 
complete. 
The following shows details of the review/appeal numbers: 
 

 Reviews Appeals Position After Reviews 
& Appeals 

Numbers of 
reviews/appeals 

81 24  

Reds 46 15 19 

Whites 24 6 36 

Greens 11 9 26  
 
The final position after both reviews and appeals means that of the 81 staff 48 went 
up, 1 went down and 32 remain unchanged. Reasons for the changes included: 

§ Further and new information was made available about the post 
§ Posts had changed since the original evaluation (some had been done almost 

one year earlier). 
§ Evaluations were incorrect due to misunderstandings about the post duties. 

 
Grade Profile 
Following the completion of reviews and appeals the grade profile for the organisation 
at the 31 August 2010 is as follows: 
 

GRADE SALARY BAND - £ Staff Numbers Number of FTE’s  

Apprentice Grade 7,800 6 6 

Grade 1 13,000-14,500 11 3.49 

Grade 2 14,500-16,500 8 6.61 

Grade 3 16,500-18,500 13 11.01 

Grade 4 18,500-20,500 121 105.63 

Grade 5 20,500-22,500 69 67.45 

Grade 6 22,500-26,500 83 80.11 

Grade 7 26,500-30,500 77 74.70 

Grade 8 30,500-34,500 48 45.22 

Grade 9 34,500-38,500 36 36 

Page 35



 

   

Grade 10 38,500-42,500 26 26 

Grade 11 42,500-46,500 9 9 

HOS 1 55,000 4 4 

HOS 2 60,000 5 5 

HOS 3 65,000 3 3  
 
Pay Protection 
The collective agreement signed off by National Unison included the provision of pay 
protection for all staff who would lose salary (red circles) for a period of 2.5 years. This 
would be in place from 1 April 2010 until 30 September 2012. During this time no 
member of staff would be able to progress through the new incremental structure, 
unless there post had been identified as an established career graded post.  
 
Some staff also kept any pay protection still in place beyond the 31 March 2010, all of 
these ceasing by 31 March 2011.  
 
There are currently 67 employees receiving an element of pay protection at a cost of 
£111,668 (without on costs) between the period of the 1 April 2010 and 30 September 
2012.  
 
Financial Position 
At the commencement of the Job Evaluation project budgetary provision of £516,000 
was made for any increase in the total wage bill, including initial outcomes as well as 
those following reviews and appeals. The total cost of implementing the outcomes of 
job evaluation is within this budgetary figure and includes the period of protection. 
 
Standby Allowances 
It was agreed as part of the collective agreement that standby allowances would be 
reviewed as soon as possible to ensure equity of the rates being used. New rates 
were agreed with effect from the 1 July 2010. The policy is attached at Appendix 1. 
 
Essential User Car Allowances 
It was agreed that staff who received an essential user car allowance as at the 31 
March 2010 would keep the allowance until the 31 March 2011 during which time the 
allowance would be reviewed. A new scheme was agreed recently and is attached at 
Appendix 2. 
 
 
Equal Pay Challenges 
Equal pay law states that men and women are entitled to equal pay for equal work in 
the same employment where they are employed on:  

• Like work (that is the same or broadly comparable work); 

• Work rated as equivalent (different work but rated as equivalent under a job 
evaluation scheme); 

• Work of equal value (different work, but which could be rated as equivalent if 
there had been a job evaluation scheme. Equal value is determined by 
comparing work under such headings as effort, skill and decision – usually 
done by an ACAS independent report if goes through tribunal). 

 
 

Page 36



 

   

Employees can therefore make an equal pay claim using any of these three options if 
they can provide evidence that they apply. The Council has received an equal pay 
grievance from 5 female employees who are in 3 generic administrative posts. The 
grievance states comparability to the posts of Waste Collection Loader, Refuse Driver 
and Sweeper Driver. Should the grievance be successful the employees could 
proceed to tribunal with a maximum potential award of up to six years backdated pay. 
The response to the claim by the Council deems two of the comparator posts to be 
unsuitable as they are in different new grades to the administrative posts. Therefore 
would not be seen as comparable in terms of value of work as dictated by the job 
evaluation scheme. The one post that is in the same grade as the comparator post 
has been paid either generally lower or around the same as the administrative post 
and there is not deemed to be an inequity in pay during the previous six year period. 
The grievance has therefore not been upheld The claimants are appealing this 
decision but as yet no grounds have been cited. The appeal will be heard by the 
Appeals Committee.  
 
Pay Progression Criteria 
The final element of the job evaluation project to be completed is the need to establish 
pay progression criteria for the new incremental pay structure. i.e. the criteria staff in 
post will need to be able to meet to progress from one increment to the next within a 
grade. Each grade having five grade points so five stages of criteria will need to be 
developed for each of the evaluated 271 posts within the council, excluding those on 
fixed point salary grades. No employee will be eligible to apply for incremental 
progression using this new scheme until the 1 October 2012.  
 
In developing this criteria consultancy will be required as there is no in house 
expertise. It was hoped the project would commence in September 2010 with the 
appointment of a consultant however this process has been delayed for three months 
in order to wait for the outcome of the spending review and the decision concerning 
the shared management arrangements with South Northants District Council, as 
following these decisions a different approach may need to be considered.  
 
 
Implications 

 

Financial: All financial effects of changes can be contained 
within existing approved budgets. 

 Comments checked by Karen Muir, 01295 221559 

  

Risk Management: There are no risk management issues associated 
with this report as no recommendations for approval 
are being sought. The report is to provide an update 
only. 

 Comments checked by Rosemary Watts, Risk 
Management & Insurance Officer, 01295 221566 

  

Page 37



 

   

 

Legal There are no legal issues associated with this report 
as no recommendations for approval are being 
sought. The report is to provide an update only. 

 Comments checked by Nigel Bell, Solicitor, 01295 
221687 

 

 
Wards Affected 

 
Not applicable 
 
Document Information 

 

Appendix No Title 

Appendix 1 
 
Appendix 2 

Standby Allowance Policy 
 
Essential User Allowance Policy 

Background Papers 

None 

Report Author Anne-Marie Scott, Head of Human Resources 

Contact 
Information 

01295 221731 

annemarie.scott@Cherwell-dc.gov.uk 

 

Page 38



 

   

Appendix 1 
 

 

 

 
 

Standby and On Call 
Policy 

(effective 1 July 2010) 

 

1. Introduction 

 
It is the Council’s intention to ensure that all staff who are on a standby rota or on call 
rota receive fair and equitable compensation for inconvenience caused. It also seeks 
to ensure that staff receive payments in line with the level of inconvenience. 
 

2. Eligibility for Standby Payments 

 
The only staff eligible to receive a standby or on call payment are those dealing with 
emergencies 
relating to out-of-hours services that are either statutory council requirements or are 
essential to the delivery of council services. Only one member of staff per service will 
receive a standby payment or on call payment at any given time. For the purpose of 
this policy out of hours does not include office opening hours i.e. 8.45am to 5.15pm 
Monday to Friday. The Head of Service will determine the rota to be used in 
providing an out of hours service and which posts/staff should be included in the rota, 
and as hours may vary per service area, an hourly rather than weekly rate will be 
used. 
 

3. Standby Allowance 

 
Standby arrangements will require the employee to remain contactable, outside of 
normal working hours, for a stated period (in accordance with an agreed rota). 
Eligibility for standby as opposed to on call requires an employee to be available to 
attend a site or incident if required and within a reasonable time period if called and 
therefore the employee is required to remain fit to attend work within a reasonable 
time period.  
 
The standby rate is £2.05 per hour. Double time will be paid for hours an employee is 
required to be on standby for during bank holidays. There is no enhanced rate for 
weekends. Should an employee be called to attend an incident rather than being able 
to deal with this over the telephone, overtime will be paid in accordance with the 
Council’s current overtime rates.  

Page 39



 

   

4. On Call Allowance  

 
On call arrangements will require the employee to remain contactable, outside of 
normal working hours, for a stated period (in accordance with an agreed rota). On 
call means that the Council does not require an employee to be available to attend a 
site or incident as a result of any phone calls or contact. Queries can be dealt with via 
a telephone or other remote communication. 
 
The on call rate is £1.25 per hour and recognises the difference in both the volume of 
queries but also the fact that the employee’s home life balance is less disrupted as 
call outs are never required. . The allowance covers all work undertaken in dealing 
with queries and overtime does not apply to anyone undertaking on call duties. 
 
Double time will be paid for hours an employee is required to be on call during bank 
holidays. There is no enhanced rate for weekends. 
 

5. Status and review of rates 

 
Should service needs change then the Head of Service has the right to review out of 
hours arrangements which may result in a change in the rota, and possibly the 
withdrawal of the out of hours service and the related entitlement to any related 
allowance. 
 

Standby and call out allowances attract normal deductions, including pensions where 
employees are in scheme membership.  

Rates for on call and standby will be reviewed on an annual basis in accordance with 
the pay award. 

 

Page 40



 

   

Appendix 2 
 

 

 
 

Car User Policy 

 

Background and status 

 
This policy is subject to a collective agreement dated July 2010 and replaces all 
previous policies on essential and casual user allowances, the company car and car 
cash schemes.  
 
Essential user allowances are paid to reflect a contractual requirement to provide a 
vehicle for work but may be allocated and withdrawn in line with criteria below. 
Allowances are reviewed in October each year as part of the budget setting process 
and changes applied from April the following year.  
 
Where a post no longer meets the following criteria it will be removed. Employees will 
be informed of this change at least 2 months before 1 April each year.  
 

Criteria for essential user allowance 

 
1. Have an obligation to respond to public safety, control or other enforcement 

activity 
or 

2. Be required to travel in excess of 2000 miles per annum. This figure is 
calculated over two years 

 
As a general principle, wherever practicable in terms of resource and time, journeys 
should be undertaken by public transport.  
 
Eligibility to an essential users allowance users allowance will be determined by 
Service Heads and ratified by CMT 
 

Essential user allowance and mileage rate 

 
The essential user allowance is £1000 per annum, paid monthly. Mileage is paid at 
the HMRC (Her Majesty’s Revenue and Customs) rate which is currently 40p per 
mile for every mile travelled. The allowance is subject to tax and NI but not pension 
contributions and declarable via the P11D tax forms.  
 
The allowance and mileage rate are standard, irrespective of the cc of the car driven. 
 
Part-time staff will receive a pro-rata allowance according to the number of hours 
worked and be subject to pro-rata criteria for allowance allocation (e.g. an employee 
working half of the standard hours and who meets number (1) above will entitled to 

Page 41



 

   

an allowance of £500. To meet number (2) above the amount of miles travelled will 
be in excess of 1000 miles per annum).  
 

Non-essential (casual) users 

 
Employees who do not meet the above criteria but use their car on Council business 
will be entitled to claim the standard HMRC rate, currently 40p per mile, for every 
mile travelled on Council business. There is no contractual requirement for a member 
of staff to provide a vehicle 

 

Insurance 

 
All staff travelling on Council business must have the appropriate insurance.  
 
Documentation 
 
The documentation relating to a vehicle that is used by a post holder who receives an 
Essential or Casual Car Allowance will be examined at the annual review of that 
member of staff. The post holder must complete the Medical Questionnaire and the 
Work Related Road Safety Personal Risk Assessment and present them and their 
driving licence to their line manager.  Where the Work Related Road Safety Personal 
Risk Assessment form identifies a risk that is medium or high the matter must be 
brought to the attention of HR who will decide on the appropriate action. 
All the documentation mentioned above as well as a copy of the driving licence will 
be submitted to HR where it will be filed in the post holder’s personal file. 
The requirement to complete the Medical Questionnaire will only be at the first 
annual review. 
Where an individuals circumstances change to the extent that it that may affect their 
eligibility to drive they must complete Work Related Road Safety Personal Risk 
Assessment and or the Medical questionnaire and submit them to their line manager 
who will then consult HR. 
 
New Posts 
 
The eligibility to a Car Users Allowance will be determined at the time a new post is 
created and by CMT.. 

 

Page 42



 

   

Personnel Committee 
 

Staff Satisfaction Survey 
 

30 September 2010 
 

Report of Head of Human Resources 
 

 
PURPOSE OF REPORT 

 
 
 

This report is public 
 

 
Recommendations 

 
The Committee is recommended: 
 
To comment on the proposed corporate action plan in response to the MORI 
staff survey.  

 
Executive Summary 

 
2. Introduction 
 
2.1 In March 2010 the Council undertook its second full comprehensive staff 

survey. 
 
2.2 The research company Ipsos MORI ran the survey on behalf of 

Cherwell.  MORI are external experts in the field and carry out similar 
surveys across all sectors. They are able to ensure statistical reliability, 
credibility and confidentiality and also give access to significant 
benchmarking data for both local government and other sectors. 

 
2.3 Understanding the prevailing organisational culture is essential to 

organisational development and staff attitudes and beliefs are 
fundamental to culture.  There are clear links between levels of 
employee satisfaction and organisational performance.  A workforce 
feeling involved and consulted is more likely to include employees who 
are motivated and therefore perform at a higher level.   

 
2.4 Members discussed the second survey at the meetings in late 2009 to 

consider whether, in the prevailing climate, allocating resource to the 
survey was appropriate. At that time Members determined that the 
survey should proceed and MORI were engaged to undertake this 
second comprehensive staff survey in 2010. 84% of staff returned the 

Agenda Item 9

Page 43



 

   

survey, an exceptionally high figure for surveys of this type.  
 
2.5 The cost of the survey was met from the corporate training budget. 
 
2.6 Members of the Personnel Committee received a presentation of the 

results and a copy of the Ipsos MORI report in June 2010.  
 
2.7 In addition to providing valuable feedback and benchmarking 

information, the survey provides an opportunity to develop action plans 
for improvement. This was done very successfully after the 2008 survey 
and the consequent improved results can clearly be seen in the 2010 
survey.  

 
2.8 Given the very high response rate the data provided by this survey 

provides a very good representation of the views of staff about the 
Council as an employer and service provider.  

 
2.9 This report provides an opportunity for Members to comment on the 

proposed corporate action plan which can be found at appendix A.  
 
2.10 Individual service areas have also developed local action plans based on 

detailed information for results for their respective areas. These action 
plans are being monitored by CMT. 

 
 
3 Proposals 
 
3.1 That Members comment on the proposed action plan provided at 

appendix A.  

3.2 That Members receive regular reports throughout 2010-11 outlining 
progress against the action plan.  

 
4 Conclusion 
 
4.1 Although there are cost and other resource implications in carrying out 

full staff surveys, the value that they offers in terms of informing our 
policies and processes as an employer bring significant value. 

4.2 The exercise also provides and opportunity for members of staff from 
across the organisation to be involved in a corporate project led by the 
Chief Executive.  

 
Background Information 

 
MORI carried out the survey in March 2010 in line with our stated intention to 
carry out the survey every 2 years. 
 
There was an excellent response (64% of staff) to the 2008 survey. This was 

Page 44



 

   

exceeded in the 2010 survey with a 84% of staff responding, described as ‘an 
excellent response rate’ and attributed by Ipsos MORI to the approach taken 
following the 2008 survey.  
 
Headline results 
 

• We have improved our position on almost every measure since 2008 
and demonstrate some exceptionally strong results 

 

• We have improved strongly in the areas of focus we identified in 2008, 
now showing better results than MORI would expect (with one 
exception) 

 

• We have achieved some particularly good improvements in line 
management practices reflecting significant training and development 
investment 

 

• We have dropped back from our 2008 position on very few measures 
 

• We now underperform against other Local Authorities on just 4 of the 
48 measures 

 

• Going forward we need to build on the improvements we have secured 
since 2008 in our focus areas and add to these actions to address 
areas which have weakened/where we are below expected 
performance 

 
Exceptional strengths were identified as follows: 
 

• Excellent working atmosphere  

• Sufficient resources to do the job 

• Staff are advocates of the Council as an employer and of its services 

• Staff demonstrate exceptional understanding of the Council’s 
objectives 

• Staff feel well informed about the Council 

• Line manager qualities 

• Equal opportunities employer 
 
 
Areas for attention in 2010-2012 were identified as follows: 
 

Continue to improve results in: 
 Communications 
 Confidence in CMT 
 Consultation 
 Leadership and management of change 
 Feeling valued and recognised 

 
Add new focus on areas which have weakened/we are below norms: 

Page 45



 

   

 Team briefings 
 Bullying and harassment 

 
Continue to pay attention to employees’ fears about the future 

 
Ipsos MORI conclusion 
 
‘The findings of this survey are very encouraging. On the whole the Council is 
seen as a good place to work and an organisation that is effective and 
engaged with the needs of its employees’.  
 

Key Issues for Consideration/Reasons for Decision and Options 

 
In order to capitalise on the information received through the survey it is 
critical to develop and publish action plans and demonstrate progress against 
those plans to staff.  

 
Implications 

 

Financial: None 

 Comments checked by Denise Westlake.  

Legal: None 

 Comments checked by Liz Howlett,  

Risk Management: None 

 Comments checked by Rosemary Watts 

 
Wards Affected 

 
None 
 
Document Information 

 

Appendix No Title 

Appendix 1 MORI corporate action plan  

Background Papers 

None 

Report Author Anne-Marie Scott, Head of Human Resources 

Contact 
Information 

01295 221731 

annemarie.scott@Cherwell-dc.gov.uk 

 

Page 46



Staff Satisfaction Survey 2010 

Corporate Action Plan 
 
 

Area for improvement Action to be taken Action/Lead [target date] 

Communication and consultation • Consider whether both Cascade and Inside 
Cherwell are still needed 

• Heads of Service to attend other team 
meetings to give overview of work area and 
key priorities 

• Improve information on intranet; include staff 
photos and brief description of role 

• Publish CMT minutes 

• Introduce suggestions box on intranet for 
improvement proposals, to be reviewed by 
CMT with feedback provided 

 

• Communications Team [September 2010] 

 

• Service Heads [January 2011] 
 

• HR/ICT [April 2011] 

 

• CMT [October 2010] 

 

• Communications team [October 2010] 

 

CMT • Repeat ‘back to the floor days’ regularly 

• Have more informal, regular contact with 
service areas 

• Respond to and act on ideas – e.g. SMT 
management conference 

• Extend weekly meeting to include all 
directors on rotation 

 

• CMT to develop programme [December 
2010] 

• CMT [on-going] 

 

• CMT [on-going] 

 

• CMT [December 2010] 

Learning and Development • Ensure senior team have good level of 
management and leadership skills 

• Review learning and development priorities 
and practices [HR December 2010] 

P
a
g
e
 4

7



• Simplify procedures 

• Ensure training is clearly linked to corporate 
objectives  

• Communicate learning priorities 

• Ensure access to development is available 
for staff who are expanding roles 

• Provide development and support on 
harassment and bullying policy and issues 

Recognition • Develop mechanisms to ensure senior staff 
and Members are aware of milestones 
reached 

• Individual/team performance to be 
recognised in Cascade 

• More informal acknowledgment of job well 
done  

• Communications team [January 2011] 

 

• Communications team [January 2011] 

 

• Leadership programme [HR January 2011] 

Managing change • Publish information on potential change as 
early as possible; involve staff 

• Provide more information; timetable, FAQs, 
implications for staff etc. 

• Provide staff development on managing 
change 

• Ensure clear and regular communication 

 

• Review change management policies to 
incorporate these issues [HR, January 2011] 

 
 
 
 
 
  

Members • Consider back to the floor exercise 

• Include a ‘Service of the Week/Month’ in 
Member briefings 

• Consider developing a Member/Officer 
working protocol 

• CMT / Leader to consider [January 2011] 

 

P
a

g
e
 4

8



 

   

Personnel Committee 
 
Employment Statistics Qtr 1 – 2010/2011 

 
08 September 2010 

 
Report of Head of People & Improvement 

 
 
 

PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
This report details employment statistics, by Directorate, for information and 
monitoring purposes. 
 
 
 

This report is public 
 

 
 
 
Recommendations 

 
The Committee is recommended: 
 
To resolve to note the contents of this report  

 
 
Executive Summary 

 
 Introduction 
 
1.1 Employment Statistics April 2008 to June 2010 

 During the above period, the following quarterly changes took place in respect of 
 individual employments.   

 Staff transferred to other employers under the Transfer of Undertakings (Protection of 
 Employment) Regulations (TUPE) are excluded from the statistics shown in this 
 report.   

 

 

 

Agenda Item 10

Page 49



 

   

 

April 
to 

June 
2008 

July to 
Sept 
2008 

Oct to 
Dec 
2008 

Jan to 
March 
2009 

April 
to 

June 
2009 

July to 
Sept 
2009 

Oct to 
Dec 
2009 

Jan to 
March 
2010 

April 
to 

June 
2010 

Permanent – 
Starters (incl. 

Internal 
Transfers) 

48 41 17 16 19 10 11 17 10 

Permanent – All 
Leavers 

46 35 22 18 29 19 26 40 12 

Permanent – 
Voluntary 

Leavers (Leaving 

CDC) * 

14 22 13 6 8 10 8 8 8 

Temporary and 
Casual – Starters 

13 18 8 12 11 9 8 13 10 

Temporary and 
Casual – Leavers 

106 7 26 18 9 4 6 41 9 

 

* excludes internal transfers, age retirements, early retirements and redundancies, 

 ill-health dismissals and retirements, other dismissals and TUPE transfers. 
 
The turnover rates for permanent and fixed term staff for this quarter and the previous 
2 years, are illustrated in the graph at Appendix 1. 

 
 
 

1.2 The table attached at Appendix 2 contains details of numbers of permanent 
and fixed term employees at Cherwell District Council as at 30 June 2010 by 
Directorate and Service area, and detail staff movement and corporate 
capacity for the quarter. 

  
 
 
Implications 

 

Financial: All financial effects of changes can be contained 
within existing approved budgets. 

 Comments checked by Denise Westlake, Service 
Accountant 01295 221982  

  

Risk Management: There are no risks associated with the contents of 
this report.   

Page 50



 

   

  

  

  

 
Wards Affected 

 
Not applicable 
 
Document Information 

 

Appendix No Title 

Appendix 1 
 
Appendix 2 

Quarterly Staff Turnover  
 

Establishment/Turnover at end Quarter 1 – 30/06/2010 

Background Papers 

None 

Report Author Anne-Marie Scott, Head of People & Improvement 

Contact 
Information 

01295 221731 

annemarie.scott@Cherwell-dc.gov.uk 

 

Page 51



Page 52

This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1

Quarterly Staff Turnover

0.00%

1.00%

2.00%

3.00%

4.00%

5.00%

6.00%

7.00%

8.00%

9.00%

Q1 08/09 Q2 08/09 Q3 08/09 Q4 08/09 Q1 09/10 Q2 09/10 Q3 09/10 Q4 09/10 Q1 10/11

Quarter End

%
T

u
rn

o
v
e
r

All Leavers Voluntary Leavers Other Leavers

P
a
g
e
 5

3



P
a

g
e
 5

4

T
h
is

 p
a

g
e
 is

 in
te

n
tio

n
a
lly

 le
ft b

la
n

k



ESTABLISHMENT END Q1 30/06/2010 Established Filled Vacant All Including Internal Transfers Leaving CDC Voluntary Leavers

Staff in post at

01/04/2010

Directorate Service Posts FTE Posts FTE Posts FTE Starters Leavers Turnover Corp Cap Leavers Turnover Leavers Turnover Posts FTE

Chief Executives

Chief Executive's Office 4 4.00 4 3.86 0 0.14 0 0 0.00 100.00 0 0.00 0 0.00 4 3.86

Corp Strategy & Performance 6 5.50 6 5.72 0 -0.22 0 0 0.00 100.00 0 0.00 0 0.00 6 5.72

CSR Admin 12 11.09 12 11.08 0 0.01 0 0 0.00 100.00 0 0.00 0 0.00 12 11.08

Finance 35 33.97 35 31.61 0 2.36 0 0 0.00 100.00 0 0.00 0 0.00 35 31.61

Legal & Democratic 23 21.35 22 19.71 1 1.64 1 2 9.09 95.65 1 4.55 1 4.55 22 19.71

People & Improvement 19 18.60 18 17.35 1 1.25 2 1 5.56 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00 18 17.55

Totals 99 94.51 97 89.32 2 5.19 3 3 3.09 97.98 1 1.03 1 1.03 97 89.52

Directorate Service

Established Filled Vacant All Including Internal Transfers Leaving CDC Voluntary Leavers Filled

Posts FTE Posts FTE Posts FTE Starters Leavers Turnover Corp Cap Leavers Turnover Leavers Turnover Posts FTE

Planning, Housing 

and Economy

Building Control & Eng Svs 9 9.00 9 9.00 0 0.00 0 0 0.00 100.00 0 0.00 0 0.00 9 9.00

Development Control & MD 23 23.00 21 19.37 2 3.63 0 1 4.76 91.30 1 4.76 1 4.76 21 18.94

Housing Services 38 36.86 36 34.56 2 2.30 0 0 0.00 94.74 0 0.00 0 0.00 35 34.35

Planning Policy & Economic Dev 18 17.08 18 16.42 0 0.66 0 0 0.00 100.00 0 0.00 0 0.00 18 16.42

PHE Admin Inc Mgmt 26 23.66 25 22.81 1 0.85 0 0 0.00 96.15 0 0.00 0 0.00 25 22.81

Regeneration & Estates 26 18.45 25 17.97 1 0.49 0 1 3.85 96.15 1 3.85 0 0.00 26 18.95

Totals 140 128.05 134 120.13 6 7.92 0 2 1.49 95.71 2 1.49 1 0.75 134 120.47

Directorate Service

Established Filled Vacant All Including Internal Transfers Leaving CDC Voluntary Leavers Filled

Posts FTE Posts FTE Posts FTE Starters Leavers Turnover Corp Cap Leavers Turnover Leavers Turnover Posts FTE

Environment &

Community

Customer Services & Info Sys 67 61.43 60 52.49 7 8.94 0 3 4.84 89.55 3 4.84 3 4.84 62 54.1

ENC Admin Inc Mgmt 14 12.00 13 11.75 1 0.25 0 0 0.00 92.86 0 0.00 0 0.00 12 10.75

Environmental Services 122 118.55 118 115.14 4 3.41 7 2 1.75 96.72 1 0.88 1 0.88 114 111.00

Recreation & Health 38 29.34 36 27.76 2 1.58 0 1 2.78 94.74 0 0.00 1 2.78 36 27.68

Safer Comms, Urban and Rural 47 43.75 44 41.65 3 2.10 0 1 2.22 93.62 1 2.22 1 2.22 45 42.65

Totals 288 265.07 271 248.80 17 16.27 7 7 2.60 94.10 5 1.86 6 2.23 269 246.18

TOTAL

Directorate

Established Filled Vacant All Including Internal Transfers Leaving CDC Leaving CDC Vol Filled

Posts FTE Posts FTE Posts FTE Starters Leavers Turnover CorpCap Leavers Turnover Leavers Turnover Posts FTE

Chief Executive 99 94.51 97 89.32 2 5.19 3 3 3.09 97.98 1 1.03 1 1.03 97 89.52

Planning Housing & Economy 140 128.05 134 120.13 6 7.92 0 2 1.49 95.71 2 1.49 1 0.75 134 120.47

Environment & Community 288 265.07 271 248.80 17 16.27 7 7 2.60 94.10 5 1.86 6 2.23 269 246.18

Totals 527 487.63 502 458.25 25 29.38 10 12 2.40 95.26 8 1.60 8 1.60 500 456.17

527 487.63

Note:  Turnover is calculated on numbers of leavers as a percentage of staff in post as at start of this quarter

Appendix 2

P
a
g
e
 5

5



P
a

g
e
 5

6

T
h
is

 p
a

g
e
 is

 in
te

n
tio

n
a
lly

 le
ft b

la
n

k



Draft business case published on 21 September 2010 

Page 1 of 38 

DRAFT BUSINESS CASE

from the Joint Working Group  

for a shared senior management team  

between 

South Northamptonshire Council  
and  

Cherwell District Council 

17 September 2010 

Joint Working Group 

South Northamptonshire 
Cherwell 

Cllr Ian McCord (Chairman) Cllr James Macnamara (Vice 
Chairman) 

Cllr Caryl Billingham Cllr Ken Atack 
Cllr Steve Clarke Cllr Nick Cotter 
Cllr Diana Dallyn Cllr George Reynolds 
Cllr Paul Farrow Cllr Nicholas Turner 

Cllr Blake Stimpson Cllr Douglas Williamson 
Cllr Martin Wilson Cllr Barry Wood 

Members, beyond Joint Working Group, who have participated in 
discussions with other councils as part of the development of this 

business case: 

South Northamptonshire Cherwell 

Cllr Dermot Bambridge Cllr Colin Clarke 
Cllr Carole Clarke Cllr Michael Gibbard 

Cllr Steven Hollowell Cllr Nigel Morris 
Cllr Timothy Jackson-Stops Cllr George Parish 

Cllr John Kilmister Cllr Debbie Pickford 
Cllr Mary-Anne Sergison-Brooke Cllr Dan Sames 

Cllr John Townsend  
Cllr Sally Townsend  

Cllr Allen Walker  
Cllr Tony Wilkinson  

Agenda Item 11

Page 57



Draft business case published on 21 September 2010 

Page 2 of 38 

  

Page 58



Draft business case published on 21 September 2010 

Page 3 of 38 

FOREWORD 

The Joint Working Group of elected members from South Northamptonshire 
Council and Cherwell District Council has now produced a joint draft business 
case for the creation of a shared senior management team. Subject to 
consultation with elected members, staff and unions at both councils the Joint 
Working Group is recommending that a shared team is in place by the end of 
March 2011. 

Today, Tuesday 21st September, marks the beginning of our first consultation 
period with elected members, staff and unions which will be open until 
Monday 4th October at 12 noon. During this consultation we are seeking your 
views and feedback on the overall proposal. A summary of comments from 
both organisations will be discussed at meetings of both councils’ scrutiny 
committees on 6th October before the South Northamptonshire Cabinet and 
the Cherwell Executive consider the Joint Working Group’s recommendations 
on 11th and 25th October respectively. The recommendations of the 
Executive and Cabinet will then go onto both full Councils on 3rd November. 

Both UNISON branches have been briefed on this proposal and have been 
asked to submit responses to it directly to the Joint Working Group. These 
responses will also be available to the meetings of the scrutiny committees. 

In developing this business case, the Joint Working Group was supported by 
officers from both councils. As you will see the Joint Working Group has put a 
lot of effort into learning lessons from authorities who have already taken this 
route. All those who have successfully shared a management team have 
advised us to do it and reap the rewards; none has regretted it. 

We know that many District Councils in England who are not already in a 
formal partnership arrangement with a neighbouring district are now seriously 
talking about it. They are doing this to help save council taxpayers’ money to 
preserve services for residents and to respond to expected cuts in government 
funding over the coming years.  The discussion the Joint Working Group has 
been having over the last few weeks is of course part of this bigger picture. 
Sharing a senior management team between us will not remove the need for 
both councils to make other savings. However, working together would open 
up options unavailable previously to either council and allow us to protect 
more services for the longer-term. 

This is not a merger of our two councils but a model that strives to show that 
working together is the best way we can deliver good services to our 
communities in the years to come.  South Northamptonshire Council and 
Cherwell District Council will continue to be two sovereign bodies with 
differences in policy and procedure as now. 

Page 59



Draft business case published on 21 September 2010 

Page 4 of 38 

Should both full Councils agree to create a shared senior management team 
both Councils will create a Joint Personnel Committee. This would 
recommend the appointment of a shared Chief Executive in December, and 
then go on to appoint shared Directors in January and shared Heads of 
Service in March. There are three further shared posts included in the 
business case because they are part of the broader management team and 
are responsible for key corporate functions and these appointments would be 
made in April/May. There are no firm plans at this stage to share other posts, 
but the business case recognises that there may be a good case to do so in 
some areas in the future. If this is the case, further consultation will take place 
at the appropriate time.  

At this stage we are seeking your views on the overall proposals and 
rationale. Clearly there is a much more significant potential impact on the 
management teams at both councils at this stage and if elected members 
decide to take this step on 3rd November the affected groups will be consulted 
in much greater detail on the new structure and posts included within it.  

Consultation comments, responses and questions should be sent to our 
respective HR teams via Anne-Marie Scott at Cherwell District Council and 
Gina Thomas at South Northamptonshire Council. We are very keen to hear 
staff views on this critical decision so please take this opportunity to 
participate. 

Best Wishes 
  
      

Jean Morgan    Mary Harpley 
Chief Executive – SNC   Chief Executive - CDC

Page 60



Draft business case published on 21 September 2010 

Page 5 of 38 

CONTENTS 
  

Section Topic Page 
  
1 Executive Summary   7 

2 Background 11 

3 Lessons from councils who already share senior management 
teams 

15 

4 Potential shared roles and structures 19 

5 Costs and benefits 22 

6 Timing of implementation 29 

7 Legal arrangements and arrangements for member 
appointments to shared senior team 

31 

8 Success criteria and project risks 32 

9 Potential for savings beyond the senior management team 34 

10 Engagement strategy 36 

11 Recommendations 37 

12 Appendices: 

Appendix 1 Terms of reference of joint working group  

Appendix 2 I&DeA report – Shared chief executives and joint 
management: a model for the future? 

Appendix 3 Notes from meetings with three other pairs of district councils 
who already have shared senior teams in place 

Appendix 4 Current senior management team structures at SNC and CDC

Appendix 5 Illustrative shared senior management team structures  

Appendix 6 Draft 113 agreement 

Appendix 7 Proposed terms of reference of joint personnel committee  

Appendix 8 Risk register 

Page 61



Draft business case published on 21 September 2010 

Page 6 of 38 Page 62



Draft business case published on 21 September 2010 

Page 7 of 38 

1.0 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

Introduction

1.1 Cherwell District Council’s (CDC) Executive and South 
Northamptonshire Council’s (SNC) Cabinet agreed in June to set up a 
Joint Working Group to oversee the development and delivery of a 
detailed business case for the creation of a single senior management 
team to serve both councils. This document summarises the Joint 
Working Group’s findings and recommendations. Members, staff and 
unions of both councils will be consulted before the Joint Working 
Group presents its final recommendations to the scrutiny committees of 
both councils and to CDC’s Executive and SNC’s Cabinet. The final 
decisions will be taken by both CDC and SNC at meetings of both full 
councils on 3 November. 

1.2 Like all councils SNC and CDC face significant shortfalls in their 
Medium Term Financial Strategies (MTFS) in light of the expected cuts 
to the grants local authorities receive from central government. 
Government departments are almost certainly facing real terms grant 
cuts over 4 years of 25-40% and while the detailed assumptions of 
SNC and CDC are different, in some respects it is clear that the type of 
cost-saving activities, which have been successfully pursued in both 
councils in recent years, are not going to deliver the larger-scale cost 
reductions now required. 

1.3 But CDC and SNC have much more in common than their financial 
challenges. Both councils are managing significant housing growth with 
the infrastructure and resource challenges this brings. Both have 
ambitions for improving the quality of life of their residents, and for 
supporting their businesses in ways which go beyond the usual remit of 
district councils. This work takes up significant staffing capacity which 
the Leaders of CDC and SNC and the Joint Working Group would like 
to continue for as long as possible. 

1.4 Both councils are now well advanced with their service and financial 
planning for 2011/12 and beyond. Both are considering potential cuts 
to services. Although it is unlikely that bringing the management teams 
together would remove the need for any service reductions, the 
savings from such a move would significantly reduce the shorter and 
medium-term cuts required. If they adopt joint working, members of 
both councils will have options that would not be the case if they 
continue to work alone. 

Page 63



Draft business case published on 21 September 2010 

Page 8 of 38 

Key workstreams

1.5 Before arriving at our recommendations we, the Joint Working Group, 
invested much effort in a number of pieces of work in order to present a 
comprehensive business case: 

1.6 Lessons from councils who have already put shared management 
teams in place 
We visited/spoke to three pairs of district councils who share 
management teams, and were joined at these meetings by many other 
elected members from both councils. 

1.7 Potential shared roles and structures 
Our work on a potential shared management team structure and roles 
took into account the current top-level structures of SNC and CDC, and 
the structures already in place elsewhere. We also considered which 
current roles are equivalent to which potential new roles, and therefore 
which current postholders would be eligible to apply for which. 

1.8 Costs and benefits 
We considered the ongoing costs and benefits of a shared senior 
management team, the one-off costs, the affordability for both councils, 
and the payback periods for both. We also considered the potential 
models for allocating costs or savings between the councils. 

1.9 Timing of implementation 
We considered the pace at which CDC and SNC should move to a 
shared management team, particularly in light of the all-out elections at 
SNC in May. 

1.10 Legal arrangements and appointments to shared senior team 
We considered the legal arrangements which would need to be in 
place to allow SNC and CDC to share a senior management team, and 
arrangements for member appointments to shared posts. 

1.11 Risks 
We considered the risks of combining the two current management 
teams into one, and the mitigating actions required to manage these 
risks. 

1.12 The potential for savings beyond the senior management team 
In accordance with the scope of our terms of reference, we briefly 
considered the potential further savings which would come from CDC 
and SNC sharing officers at the tier below Heads of Service. 

Page 64



Draft business case published on 21 September 2010 

Page 9 of 38 

Conclusions

We drew a number of conclusions from our work: 

1.13 Lessons from others 
That councils who share management teams do retain their 
sovereignty, and elected members of such councils remain in charge of 
decision-making in their respective districts. 

1.14 That councils do share management teams successfully; that the 
theoretical savings have turned out to be real and often greater than 
predicted; that shared officers do successfully serve two councils even 
where the priority projects and policies are different; that councils which 
share management teams do carry on working in other partnerships 
where appropriate. 

1.15 Shared structure 
That SNC and CDC should share a senior management team 
comprising twelve posts – a Chief Executive, three Directors and eight 
Heads of Service – and, beyond the senior management team, three 
further posts. 

1.16 Financial benefits 
That these fifteen proposed shared posts would cost a total of 
£1,601,000, compared to a total current cost of £2,647,000, 
representing a total annual saving of £1,046,000 on the councils’ 
current costs. 

1.17 That CDC and SNC should share the ongoing costs of these shared 
posts 50/50, recognising that officers appointed to these roles will split 
their time equally between the two organisations. There will be an 
annual saving of £360,000 for SNC and £686,000 for CDC and 
cumulative 5-year savings of £1,800,000 for SNC and £3,430,000 
for CDC. 

1.18 That the one-off costs are estimated as £1,384,000, and that CDC 
should pay 60% of these in light of its size relative to SNC and also in 
order to secure broadly similar payback periods for both councils. This 
represents costs to SNC of £553,600 and costs to CDC of £830,400, 
assuming average one-off costs, and that all posts are filled internally. 

1.19 That these one-off costs would be paid back in 1.54 years to SNC in 
1.21 years to CDC. 

1.20 That these one-off costs should include a contingency sum of 
£300,000. 

Page 65



Draft business case published on 21 September 2010 

Page 10 of 38 

1.21 That in the worst case one-off costs would be £1,693,000, depending 
ultimately on which officers are appointed to the new roles.  This worst 
case represents costs to SNC of £686,000 and costs to CDC of 
£1,016,000, and the payback period to SNC is extended to 1.88 years 
and to 1.48 years to CDC; still comfortably inside the timeframe 
required by the Medium Term Financial Strategies of each council. 

1.22 That in both the average and worst case scenarios the one-off costs 
are fundable from the balances and earmarked reserves of both 
councils. 

1.23 That it is assumed that both councils apply the statutory number of 
weeks (maximum 30) to redundancy calculations, but that should the 
number of weeks’ compensation awarded be greater than this, then the 
additional cost is borne by the relevant council. 

1.24 Pace
That this shared team should be put in place quickly. 

1.25 Legal arrangements and appointments to shared posts 
That a Section 113 agreement is the most appropriate mechanism to 
provide the legal framework for joint working, and a new joint 
committee is required for elected members of both councils to make 
appointments to posts in the shared senior management team and to 
carry out other required functions such as the appraisal of the shared 
Chief Executive. 

1.26 Risks
That in light of the risk assessment and the extensive learning and 
advice from other councils, the benefits of CDC and SNC sharing a 
senior management team outweigh the risks, subject to the mitigating 
actions being implemented. 

1.27 Potential further savings beyond the senior team 
That at the tier below Service Head savings of 15-25% are probably 
achievable and could deliver further annual savings ranging from 
£168,000 to £280,000 for SNC and £294,000 to £489,000 for CDC. 
Assuming a 20% reduction in costs, such action could deliver 
cumulative savings over five years of £1,120,000 to SNC (£224,000 
per annum) and £1,960,000 to CDC (£392,000 per annum). 

Recommendations

1.28 We, the Joint Working Group, subject to consultation with members, 
staff and unions at both councils, recommend to the CDC Executive 
and the SNC Cabinet that CDC and SNC put in place a shared 
management team by the end of March 2011. 

1.29 We make a further fourteen recommendations which are laid out in 
Section 11. 

Page 66



Draft business case published on 21 September 2010 

Page 11 of 38 

2.0  BACKGROUND 

2.1 In June 2010, the CDC Executive and SNC Cabinet agreed to explore 
the feasibility of sharing a senior management team in order to save 
costs and develop closer working practices.  To this end, a Joint 
Working Group was set up in July 2010 to oversee the development 
and delivery of a detailed business case for the creation of a single 
senior management team (CEX, Directors and Heads of Service) to 
serve both CDC and SNC, and to present this to the CDC Executive 
and SNC Cabinet on 11 October 2010, and subsequently to both 
Council’s full council meetings on 3 November 2010. The terms of 
reference of this Joint Working Group are included in Appendix 1. 

Financial challenges faced by both councils

2.2 Both SNC and CDC have successfully reduced their running costs in 
recent years by securing efficiencies and transforming services. Both 
have taken out costs and looked to find new income streams. 

2.3 SNC revenue costs have increased very slightly over the last 4 years 
from £11.5m in 2007/08 to £12.1m in 2010/11. This was due in part to 
a decision to invest in senior capacity (following stock transfer) in order 
to develop an outward facing, policy-led, advocacy organisation. The 
council has achieved this by making significant revenue savings and 
by increasing revenue income (£5.4m since 2008/09 with further 
measures in the 2010/11 budget of £1.3m). The budget reliance on 
investment income has been significantly reduced, although the 
Council has achieved a 3% return on four packages totalling £20m 
which mature over the next three years. All of this has enabled the 
impact on frontline services to be kept to a minimum. 

2.4 CDC has reduced its revenue costs by £5m (21%) in the last 4 years, 
from £23.5m in 2007/08 to a budget of £18.5m in 2010/11. Reductions 
in total staff costs have driven this almost entirely, reducing from 
£21.1m in 2007/08 to £16.9m in 2010/11. Only minor cuts have been 
made to services along the way. At the same time CDC has 
deliberately reduced its exposure to investment income, relying in 
2010/11 on investment income for 6% of the revenue budget, 
compared to 29% in 2007/08. 

2.5 But despite this good work, both councils face significant shortfalls in 
their Medium Term Financial Strategies (MTFS). Both councils are 
working to three MTFS scenarios, which in turn project total shortfalls 
for 2011/12 to 2014/15. The shortfalls are significant for both councils 
although the detailed assumptions around cuts to formula grant, 
concessionary travel pressures and other issues are different. 

Page 67



Draft business case published on 21 September 2010 

Page 12 of 38 

Cherwell South Northants 1

Best case £11.3m (assumes formula 
grant cut by 5% per year for 
3 years) 

£4.2m (assumes formula 
grant freeze) 

Realistic 
case 

£15.8m (assumes formula 
grant cut by 6.5% per year 
for 3 years) 

£6.9m (assumes formula 
grant cut by 10% in 
2011/12) 

Worst case £16.8m (assumes formula 
grant cut by 20% over 2 
years) 

£10.3m (assumes 
formula grant cut by 
6.5% per year for 3 
years) 

2.6 The budget on 22nd June made it clear that unprotected Whitehall 
departments such as Communities and Local Government (DCLG) are 
likely to face cuts of at least 25% over the next 4 years. Depending 
which departments secure a degree of protection, and assuming 
DCLG is not one of those, we may be facing cuts in the order of 30% 
over the next 4 years.  

2.7 However, it should be noted that cuts of this order are ‘real terms’ 
reductions after taking into account an element of growth for 
inflationary pressures in the future. The ‘cash’ reductions will be lower 
than the ‘real terms’ reductions being quoted. Both authorities have 
incorporated ‘cash’ reductions into their MTFSs.

2.8 We are very unlikely to have further news now until the outcome of the 
Comprehensive Spending Review is announced on 20th October 2010. 
We will then be certain of the level of cuts being imposed on DCLG, 
although both councils will have to wait until November/December 
before the provisional settlement details are announced, and until 
January before we are informed of our final settlement figures. 

2.9 In seeking savings to date, both Councils have worked in partnership 
with other local authorities. SNC has a partnership with three other 
councils to prepare the Local Development Framework, which is the 
responsibility of the West Northamptonshire Joint Strategic Planning 
Committee supported by a Joint Planning Unit. It has a joint 
Community Partnership Unit (and a joint, statutory Community Safety 
Partnership) with Daventry District Council and also provides payroll 
services to DDC. It also works closely with Aylesbury Vale DC and 
Buckinghamshire CC on issues related to Silverstone Circuit, which 

                                                
1 Cherwell project their medium term revenue plan over a four year period and therefore in 
order to order to ensure comparability the South Northants projections have been provided for 
the same period (rather than the normal five year period reported to the SNC Budget Working 
Group). The five year period figures would be £5.2m (optimistic), £8.6m (realistic) and £13.0m 
(pessimistic). 

Additionally the South Northamptonshire figures do not incorporate the £1m reduction that full 
council agreed in June 2010. The above figures would be reduced by £5m if these were 
incorporated (and the figures in the table by £4m) 

Page 68



Draft business case published on 21 September 2010 

Page 13 of 38 

straddles the districts’ boundaries. CDC tendered and procured its 
internal audit services and its treasury management services jointly 
with Oxford City Council and is increasingly using the Oxford 
Procurement Hub to procure utilities and other services. Cherwell is 
currently sharing a S151 officer on an interim basis with SNC. 

2.10 However, while both councils continue to pursue cost-saving 
opportunities with others where opportunities arise, the size of the 
potential shortfalls in both MTFSs means a more strategic and more 
focussed approach to joint working is needed to make larger-scale 
opportunities possible, some of them in the short-term. In the 
meantime, neither council will need to undo any of these partnership 
arrangements. If CDC and SNC agree to share a senior management 
team it will be appropriate to review these as and when the right 
opportunities arise.  

Much more in common than our financial challenges

2.11 One of the widely recognised necessary starting points for successful 
joint working at the scale proposed, is a degree of commonality 
between the councils and the districts they serve, allowing a shared 
group of officers to serve two different councils effectively and with 
sufficient common ground to open up the potential for efficiencies to 
flow from shared services.  

2.12 SNC and CDC have a significant amount in common in terms of the 
districts we serve and our ambitions for service delivery and enhancing 
the quality of life of our residents. The following table provides a 
comparison between the two councils over a commonly used set of 
characteristics. 

Cherwell South Northants
Land area 230 square miles 250 square miles
Current population 137,400 90,300
Population estimate (2031) 169,900 113,700

Number of Councillors 50 42
Staff (FTEs) 487 227
Revenue budget 2010/11 £18.5m £12.1m
Band D Council Tax 2010/11 £123.50 £170.37

Page 69



Draft business case published on 21 September 2010 

Page 14 of 38 

Our strategic priorities are similar: 

Cherwell South Northants 
� Cherwell: A District of Opportunity 
� A Cleaner, Greener Cherwell 
� A Safe, Healthy Cherwell 
� An Accessible, Value for Money 

Council 

� Preserve what is special  
� Protect the vulnerable  
� Enhance performance 

2.13 In particular, both councils are trying to manage significant housing 
growth with the infrastructure challenges this brings. South 
Northamptonshire is part of the Milton Keynes South Midlands (MKSM) 
area – the largest national growth area – and part of Cherwell (Bicester 
and the surrounding area) is included in one of the South East’s 
Diamonds for Growth.  In August 2010 both Councils supported the 
South East Midlands Local Enterprise Partnership proposal. 

2.14 Both councils have ambitions for delivering for our districts in ways 
which go beyond the usual remit of  district councils, working with 
partners to deliver members’ and residents’ priorities. Such work takes 
up significant staffing capacity which Leaders of both councils and the 
Joint Working Group would like to preserve for as long as possible. 

For example: 

Cherwell  South Northants 

• Securing a flood alleviation 
scheme for Banbury 

• Delivering a national exemplar eco 
town at Bicester 

• Protecting maternity and paediatric 
services at the Horton Hospital in 
Banbury 

• Working to maintain the right fit 
between employers’ needs and 
local workforce skills – in good 
times and through recession 

• Helping shape the future of West 
Northamptonshire’s growth 

• Securing the future of Towcester by 
the Moat Lane regeneration 
scheme  

• Regenerating Brackley Town 
Centre – implementing the agreed 
Masterplan 

• Ensuring sustainable rural 
communities (Interim Rural 
Housing Strategy) 

Service and financial planning 2011/12

2.15 Both councils are now well advanced with their service and financial 
planning for 2011/12. Should both councils agree to put in place a 
shared management team, the 2011/12 savings from such a move 
would prevent some shorter-term cuts to services.  It is unlikely that 
bringing the management teams together would remove the need for 
any other cuts. However, working together would open up options 
previously unavailable to either council and unavailable to each 
working on its own. 

Page 70



Draft business case published on 21 September 2010 

Page 15 of 38 

3.0 LESSONS FROM COUNCILS WHO ALREADY SHARE SENIOR 
MANAGEMENT TEAMS 

3.1 The IDeA report Shared chief executives and joint management: a 
model for the future, published in October 2009, lays out the joint 
arrangements under which nine pairs of district councils (and one 
district and one county council) share a group of senior officers as well 
as some teams and under which all have achieved efficiencies. The 
report (attached as Appendix 2) demonstrates that safeguarding 
services though greater efficiencies is now the main motivation for 
pursuing joint management arrangements and shared services. It 
concludes that the benefits go beyond the financial savings to be made 
from taking the first step to move to one management team, to greater 
opportunities for efficiencies from shared services, savings from joint 
procurement and a higher profile for the pairs of councils who now 
represent between them combined populations of up to 250,000 
people. The report is also clear that such savings are achievable much 
faster than they would otherwise be after the creation of one shared top 
team. 

3.2 The same report includes a checklist of key factors to consider when 
thinking about shared management arrangements: 

• Ensure no large cultural differences 

• There must be similarities in the areas covered by the councils 

• The communities need to have some similarities 

• Both councils must trust the chief executive 

• There must be clear and understood governance  

• Politicians must be able to trust and work with each other. 

3.3 The Joint Working Group, and other elected members from both 
councils, have invested significant time in understanding in detail the 
lessons to be learned from members and officers at other councils who 
have already trodden this path. We have visited/spoken to: 

• South Oxfordshire and Vale of White Horse District Councils and 
spoken to both Leaders and one of the Directors 

• East Hampshire and Havant District Councils and spoken to one 
of the Leaders and the shared Chief Executive (the other Leader 
was ill on the day) 

• The shared Chief Executive of High Peak and Staffordshire 
Moorlands Borough Councils 

3.4 The notes of these three sessions, subsequently discussed in detail at 
meetings of the Joint Working Group, are included in Appendix 3, 
alongside the questions we used to explore issues at the first visit to 
South Oxfordshire and Vale of White Horse and built on during 
subsequent visits. We judge these to be the most important lessons we 
learned: 

Page 71



Draft business case published on 21 September 2010 

Page 16 of 38 

3.5 Setting the direction

• Sovereignty – is not compromised. 

• Communications – cannot do enough with members, officers, unions 
and stakeholders.  Keep messages clear and simple, and repeat the 
message as it will not always be heard or understood the first time.  Be 
consistent.  Use all media, email, face to face, letters, briefings etc. 

• Trust and clarity – both groups of members must trust the shared 
Chief Executive, and be clear with him/her about their expectations and 
priorities.  It is not essential that both councils are controlled by the 
same political group (South Oxfordshire and Vale of White Horse). 

• Similar issues and priorities – both districts should have some 
common issues and concerns, requiring similar expertise in officers. 

• Different priorities – can be recognised and respected – whether in 
the way resources are allocated or paid for, or in the way constitutions 
remain different and distinct. 

• Shared S151s and Monitoring Officers – this works. 

3.6 Impact on structure

• Harmonising terms and conditions – at the outset or after 
appointment of senior management team, both models are possible, 
although not harmonising in advance adds complexity in an already 
complex environment. 

• Employing the shared management team – all officers employed by 
one organisation or employed by “home” (originating) organisation. 

3.7 The transition

• Pace – once the proposal is agreed, it is important to move as quickly 
as possible in order to minimise uncertainty for officers. 

• IT – this is crucial to efficient working from more than one location/base 
for officers, and it is essential compatible IT systems are in place in 
both organisations as early as possible. 

• Appointing the shared management team – by a Joint Appointments 
Committee/Panel, comprising members from each organisation. 

• Rigorous project management – ensures this complex series of inter-
related initiatives are delivered on time and savings/efficiencies are 
realised. 

Page 72



Draft business case published on 21 September 2010 

Page 17 of 38 

3.8 Financial issues

• The savings – these are real and deliverable. 

• Unexpected benefits/efficiencies – varying from single response to 
government consultations, to taking good practice from one 
organisation and transferring to other; streamlining procedures (helps 
officers working across two organisations) – BUT NOTE that this 
should not become the rule unless acceptable to members in both 
organisations. 

3.9 Impact on service delivery

• Changing roles – members become more strategic, focussed on 
priorities; service managers have to take on more responsibility for 
delivering services as senior team’s focus becomes more strategic. 

• Sharing services with other organisations – some sharing 
arrangements were “monogamous”, some more mixed. 

3.10 Impact on members

• Changing roles - members become more strategic, focussed on 
priorities 

3.11 Impact on staff

• Sharing services – this is where the greatest on-going efficiencies are 
to be achieved, but officers and members have to be prepared to be 
innovative and think about services differently to deliver savings whilst 
maintaining (or improving) service levels.  Heads of Service need to be 
appointed with clear expectation that they will prepare business cases 
for sharing services, and implement these cases if they are approved. 

3.12 Impact on partners and community

• Residents – all agreed that residents in general are not concerned 
with shared management arrangements provided service levels are 
maintained and Council Tax levels/increases are low; being able to 
demonstrate overhead savings is a vote winner in the view of 
politicians. 

• Impact on stakeholders – in some cases, other organisations had 
followed suit and joined up, e.g. Police Force Basic Command Units, 
Citizens Advice Bureaux and Local Strategic Partnerships in order to 
reduce duplication of meetings, consultations etc. 

Page 73



Draft business case published on 21 September 2010 

Page 18 of 38 

3.13 With hindsight

• Travel between sites – minimise by use of teleconferencing, 
telephone and email, otherwise can be very time-consuming to travel 
several times a day between sites. 

• One way door – once shared management has been begun, there is 
no return – not only due to cost considerations, but also because it is 
successful in delivering efficiencies and protecting front line services. 

• No regrets from anyone – and hearty recommendations to follow 
them all down this path. 

Conclusions

Lessons learned 

3.14 That councils who share management teams do retain their 
sovereignty, and elected members of such councils remain in charge of 
decision-making in their respective districts. 

3.15 That councils do share management teams successfully. 

3.16 That the theoretical savings have turned out to be real, and often 
greater than predicted. 

3.17 That shared officers do successfully serve two councils, even where 
the priority projects and policies remain different. 

3.18 That councils which share management teams do carry on working in 
other partnerships where appropriate. 

Page 74



Draft business case published on 21 September 2010 

Page 19 of 38 

4.0 POTENTIAL SHARED ROLES AND STRUCTURES  

4.1 The terms of reference of the Joint Working Group in effect put 31 
posts across SNC and CDC in scope. The current top-level structures 
at both councils are detailed in Appendix 4. 

4.2 It is proposed that CDC and SNC share a senior management team 
comprising twelve posts – a Chief Executive, three Directors, and eight 
Heads of Service.  This level of resource is in line with other shared 
teams, and both current Chief Executives are of the view that this is the 
right level of resource going forward. 

4.3 It is proposed that the final structure for the senior management team 
is agreed by both councils only once the shared Chief Executive has 
been appointed. However, Appendix 5 illustrates three possible 
structures with headline pros and cons. The final structure could be 
one of these or a variation on any of them.    

4.4 It is proposed that a further three posts are shared by the two councils 
at this stage – a Communications Manager, a Corporate Performance 
Manager, and a Programme Manager. These posts are being added 
now, as these roles are captured by the scope of the Joint Working 
Group’s terms of reference and help deliver further savings. 

4.5 This business case assumes in the first instance that all fifteen new 
roles are open only to the current holders of specific posts in both 
councils in order that both councils can fulfil their legal obligations to 
those members of staff they put at risk by putting in place a smaller 
shared management team. This process of ‘ring-fencing’ roles results 
in jobs being ring-fenced to officers already in broadly similar roles at 
an equivalent level. In this instance it results in six ring-fences and the 
following eligibility to apply for roles in the new structure: 

Page 75



Draft business case published on 21 September 2010 

Page 20 of 38 

New shared posts Current posts in ring-fence 

Ring-fence 1 1 Chief Executive 2 Chief Executives (2) 

Ring-fence 2 3 Directors 5 Directors (3 at SNC and 2 
at CDC) 

Ring-fence 3 8 Service Heads 14 Service Heads (4 at SNC 
and 10 at CDC as 1 CDC 
post is vacant) 

2 SNC lead officers with 
responsibility for service 
planning, budget and team 
management (Waste 
Services Manager and IT & 
Customer Services Manager) 

Ring-fence 4a Communications Manager 1 SNC Communications 
Manager 

(CDC Communications 
Manager post is vacant) 

Ring-fence 4b Corporate Performance 
Manager 

1 SNC Corporate 
Performance Manager  

1 CDC Corporate Planning, 
Performance and 
Partnerships Manager 

Ring-fence 4c Programme/Projects 
Manager 

1 SNC Programme Manager 

2 CDC Improvement Project 
Managers 

4.5 After the appointment of the shared Chief Executive, and confirmation 
of the final structure, all 27 staff remaining in scope (15 at CDC and 12 
at SNC) will be consulted formally on the proposed structure and then 
asked to express interest in any of the roles for which they are eligible 
and/or voluntary redundancy on the basis that any requests for 
voluntary redundancy may not be accepted. This will potentially reduce 
the ‘pool’ at an early stage and facilitate contractual notice being issued 
earlier than may otherwise be possible, and therefore savings being 
realised earlier.  Voluntary redundancies will only be accepted if the 
business case is robust both in terms of future service need and 
finances. 

Page 76



Draft business case published on 21 September 2010 

Page 21 of 38 

4.6 The business case assumes that the combined ‘talent pool’ across the 
two councils is of sufficient quality to be able to appoint internal 
candidates to all fifteen proposed shared posts. However, should an 
appointment or appointments not be made from the available internal 
candidates, additional redundancy payments and further recruitment 
costs will be payable. A contingency of £300,000 has been built into 
the business case to deal with these eventualities and any other 
unforeseen costs, should they arise. 

Conclusions

Best structure 

4.7 That SNC and CDC should share a senior management team 
comprising twelve posts – a Chief Executive, three Directors and eight 
Heads of Service – and, beyond the senior management team, three 
further posts. 

Page 77



Draft business case published on 21 September 2010 

Page 22 of 38 

5.0 COSTS AND BENEFITS 

5.1 SNC and CDC together spend a total of £2,647,000 on their current, 
separate senior teams and other roles in scope: 

Cost of new structure

5.2 The cost of the proposed new shared senior management team is 
£1,601,000. This represents a total annual saving of £1,046,000. 

  

5.3 In arriving at the senior team costs we have made the worst case 
assumption that a 10% uplift is awarded to the highest salary at each 
tier across the two authorities in order to reflect the additional 
responsibilities taken on by the new postholders, and the fact that they 
will now be serving two authorities. Actual salaries will need to be set 
once posts have been established, either via external evaluation or 
through market testing. 

5.4 In arriving at the cost of the other posts, we have assumed in the 
business case that successful candidates will be paid a joint working 
allowance of 10% above the highest current salary. 

SNC  CDC Total 
  

Number
Cost 

£000s Number
Cost 

£000s Number
Cost 

£000s 

Chief 
Executive 

1 144 1 144 2 288

Directors 3 340 2 213 5 553

Heads of 
Service 

4 381 11 878 15 1,259

Other posts 5 295 4 252 9 547

Total 13 1,160 18 1,487 31 2,647

  44% 56%

Total 
  

Number
Cost 

£000s 

Chief Executive 1 157

Directors 3 371

Heads of Service 8 850

Other posts 3 223

Total 15 1,601

Page 78



Draft business case published on 21 September 2010 

Page 23 of 38 

5.5 These posts are non-member appointments and would fall within the 
normal evaluation processes employed at each authority. The 
authorities currently have different evaluation schemes, and therefore 
further consideration is required in relation to assessing a fair salary for 
the job that reflects the additional responsibilities of the role, and is the 
same amount regardless of the authority the successful candidate 
comes from. The impact on the rest of the authority is also a relevant 
consideration at this level. 

5.6 The concept of a joint working allowance is an interim arrangement to 
facilitate joint working below service head level ahead of harmonisation 
of pay scales and formal re-evaluations. It is a process used in other 
authorities to recognise the additional duties, responsibilities (and 
potentially travel) associated with joint working, and also to incentivise 
posts to ensure the joint organisation is able to attract and retain 
competent staff. It is particularly relevant in the CDC/SNC partnership 
because of the significant disparity in pay scales and pay structures.  

To share costs or to share savings?

5.7 Detailed discussions with a range of local authorities revealed that we 
need to make a choice up front between sharing costs or savings, and 
that there are pros and cons for each.  

5.8 If the costs of a shared senior management structure are shared then 
the savings made by each council will not be equal, as we currently 
spend different amounts on our senior management structures. 

5.9 If the savings are shared then the costs of the new structure are not 
shared equally going forward. This could lead to an expectation from 
the authority funding the larger share of the costs that its members 
have the right to greater access to and attention from officers in the 
shared senior management team than the other authority. 

5.10 Detailed discussions were held with the following authorities who 
already share senior management teams. Their arrangements are: 

• South Oxfordshire and Vale of White Horse – share costs
equally 

• High Peak and Staffordshire Moorlands – share costs equally 

• East Hampshire and Havant – share costs equally but will 
review  the arrangement after 12 months 

• Adur and Worthing – share costs, but not equally. For example 
housing is apportioned 90:10 as one authority still has its 
housing stock. 

• Hambleton and Richmondshire – share costs, but not equally.  

• Bromsgrove and Redditch – share costs equally with the 
exception of housing as one authority still has its housing stock. 

Page 79



Draft business case published on 21 September 2010 

Page 24 of 38 

In summary all the authorities we contacted share costs rather than 
savings. 

5.11 We are proposing that the ongoing costs of the new shared senior 
management team are shared 50/50 between SNC and CDC, 
representing an annual saving of £360,000 for SNC and £686,000 for 
CDC. 

One-off costs

5.12 The one-off costs of putting this shared team into place are estimated 
to be £1,384,000, although the final figures will depend on which 
members of staff are appointed to the new team and which are not.  

 One-off costs £000s

Estimated termination payments 
(average) 

712

Redundancy contingency (20%) 143

General contingency 300

Recruitment costs 113

Consultancy advice (HR/Legal etc.) 100

Training/outplacement support 16

Total estimated one-off costs 1,384

5.13 We propose that CDC should pay 60% of these one-off costs in light of 
its size relative to SNC and in order to secure broadly similar payback 
periods for both councils. These costs would be shared as follows: 

• CDC  £830,400 

• SNC  £553,600 

This approach is currently the subject of discussions with our 
respective external auditors. We do not anticipate they will have any 
problems with this and we will be certain before the scrutiny 
committees consider this case. 

5.14 These figures assume that both councils apply the statutory number of 
weeks (maximum 30) to redundancy calculations, which is the current 
practice at CDC but not at SNC. A review of this policy is being 
undertaken at SNC as part of its ongoing review of HR policies 
generally and a report is being drafted for consideration at the 12th

October meeting of Appointments and Personnel Committee for 
potential recommendation to the 3rd November meeting of the SNC full 
council. 

Page 80



Draft business case published on 21 September 2010 

Page 25 of 38 

5.15 The costs of termination payments are difficult to estimate at this stage 
as we cannot predict the outcome of the recruitment process. The 
costs above are the average costs of termination payments at each tier 
across the authorities, multiplied by the number of posts that will be 
made redundant at each tier. 

5.16 However, we can calculate the minimum and maximum costs of 
termination and these are included in the next table to arrive at best 
and worst case one-off costs. We continue to assume that an internal 
candidate will be appointed to each post and we retain the contingency 
figure of £300,000. 

 One-off costs 
Best case 

£000s
Worst case 

£000s

Estimated termination payments (average) 
288 1,164

Redundancy contingency (20%) 0 0

General contingency 300 300

Recruitment costs 113 113

Consultancy advice (HR/Legal etc.) 100 100

Training/outplacement support 16 16

Total estimated one-off costs 817 1,693

Share of one-off costs (60:40) 

CDC 490 1,016

SNC 327 677

Payback periods

5.17 The table below demonstrates the payback periods for the overall 
project and for each council in the best, average and worst case 
scenarios. 

  
Best case

£000s
Average

£000s
Worst Case

£000s

One off costs 817 1,384 1,693

Ongoing savings 1,046 1,046 1,046

TOTAL 
PROJECT 

Payback period (years) 0.78 1.32 1.62

  

One off costs 490 830 1,016

Ongoing savings 686 686 686

CDC 

Payback period (years) 0.71 1.21 1.48

  

One off costs 327 554 677

Ongoing savings 360 360 360

SNC 

Payback period (years) 0.91 1.54 1.88

Page 81



Draft business case published on 21 September 2010 

Page 26 of 38 

Balances

5.18 In considering a project such as this, members need to be mindful of 
the impact on the general fund balances of each council. 

5.19 General fund balances are the ‘contingency of last resort’ for all 
councils and it is perfectly normal for one-off project costs to be funded 
from such balances. The financial modelling has considered the level 
of general fund balances held for each council and the impact the three 
best, average and worst case scenarios would have on them.  

The results are summarised below: 

  
Best case

£000s
Average

£000s
Worst Case

£000s

Cherwell District Council 

General fund balances 
(31.03.10) 

1,777 1,777 1,777

Estimated costs 490 830 1,016

General fund balances remaining 1,287 947 761

  

South Northamptonshire Council 

General fund balances 
(31.03.10) 

2,539 2,539 2,539

Estimated costs 327 554 677

General fund balances remaining 2,212 1,985 1,862

5.20 Both SNC and CDC are also considering other cost reduction 
exercises which will also have one-off costs associated with them, and 
these also need to be considered as a draw on general fund balances. 
Possible costs for further phases of joint working will also draw on 
these balances. 

5.21 In addition to their general balances CDC and SNC have the following 
earmarked reserves set aside for particular projects and potential 
liabilities: 

• CDC earmarked reserves (31.03.10) £7.0m 

• SNC earmarked reserves (31.03.10) £4.0m 

5.22 These reserves can be un-earmarked at any time and transferred back 
to general fund balances if the liabilities they are covering diminish or if 
the projects they are held for are stopped, reduced or are underspent. 

Page 82



Draft business case published on 21 September 2010 

Page 27 of 38 

5-year view

5.23 The five-year cumulative impact of the savings and costs is 
summarised below. Total savings before implementation costs to SNC 
over the next five years total are potentially £1,800,000 and total 
savings to CDC in the same period total potentially £3,430,000. 

5-year savings overview 
SNC

£000s
CDC

£000s
Total

£000s

Savings from shared senior 
management team and three other 
shared posts 

1,800               3,430          5,230

Implementation costs – senior 
team plus three posts only 
(average cost estimate) 

-554 -830 -1,384

5-year savings (estimate) 1,246 2,600 3,846

Other options considered and dismissed

5.24 The Joint Working Group have considered and dismissed the 
possibility of limiting the joint working to a shared Chief Executive. The 
value of the total annual savings is £131,580 and therefore not 
considered worthwhile.  

5.25 The Joint Working Group have considered and dismissed the 
possibility of limiting the joint working to a shared Chief Executive and 
Directors. Although the total annual savings are £313,388, and higher 
than for just a shared Chief Executive, the value of these savings is still 
not considered worthwhile.  

Conclusions

Financial benefits 

5.26 That these fifteen proposed shared posts would cost a total of 
£1,601,000 compared to a total current cost of £2,647,000, 
representing a total annual saving of £1,046,000 on the councils’ 
current costs. 

5.27 That CDC and SNC should share the costs of the fifteen shared posts 
and that they should share these costs 50/50 between the councils, 
recognising that officers appointed to these roles will split their time 
equally between the two organisations. There will be an annual saving 
of £360,000 for SNC and £686,000 for CDC and cumulative 5-year 
savings of £1,800,000 for SNC and £3,430,000 for CDC. 

Page 83



Draft business case published on 21 September 2010 

Page 28 of 38 

5.28 That the one-off costs of putting this shared team into place are 
estimated as £1,384,000 and that CDC should pay 60% of these in 
light of its size relative to SNC and in order to secure broadly similar 
payback periods for both councils. This represents costs to SNC of 
£553,600 and costs to CDC of £830,400, assuming average one-off 
costs and that all posts are filled internally. 

5.29 That these one-off costs would be paid back in 1.54 years to SNC in 
1.21 years to CDC. 

5.30 That these one-off costs should include a contingency sum of 
£300,000. 

5.31 That in the worst case one-off costs would be £1,693,000, depending 
ultimately on which officers are appointed to the new roles.  This worst 
case represents costs to SNC of £686,000 and costs to CDC of 
£1,016,000. The payback period to SNC is extended to 1.88 years and 
to 1.48 years to CDC, still comfortably inside the timeframe required by 
the Medium Term Financial Strategies of each council. 

5.32 That in both the average and worst case scenarios, the one-off costs 
are fundable from the balances and earmarked reserves of both 
councils. 

5.33 That it is assumed that both councils apply the statutory number of 
weeks (maximum 30) to redundancy calculations but that should the 
number of weeks’ compensation awarded be greater than this, then the 
additional cost is borne by the relevant council and would impact on 
their payback period. 

Page 84



Draft business case published on 21 September 2010 

Page 29 of 38 

6.0 TIMING OF IMPLEMENTATION 

6.1 The following timetable for appointments is proposed: 

November 2010 

Business case approved; Joint 
Appointments Committee convened; 
recruitment consultants appointed; 
shared Chief Executive job description 
and person specification agreed 

December 2010 Chief Executive appointed 

December 2010 – January 2011 
Formal consultation on final shared 
senior management structure with 
affected group  

January 2011 (end) 
Approval of final structure and job 
descriptions and person specifications for  
Directors and Heads of Service 

February 2011 Directors appointed 

March 2011 Heads of Service appointed 

April – May 2011 

Job descriptions and person 
specifications for Communications 
Manager, Corporate Performance 
Manager and Programme Manager 
finalised and posts appointed  

6.2 This is the Joint Working Group’s preferred timetable as it: 

• Reduces the period of uncertainty for the staff affected 

• Secures full year savings in 2011/12 from the creation of a shared 
Chief Executive, Directors and Heads of Service, totalling £847,000. 

• Secures almost full year savings in 2011/12 from the creation of the 
other three shared roles, totalling £199,000 

6.3 The alternative would be to appoint the Chief Executive and Directors 
before the 2011 elections and delay the Heads of Service 
appointments until late May/June: 

Page 85



Draft business case published on 21 September 2010 

Page 30 of 38 

November 2010 

Business case approved; Joint 
Appointments Committee convened; 
recruitment consultants appointed; 
shared Chief Executive job description 
and person specification agreed 

December 2010 Chief Executive appointed 

December 2010 – January 2011 
Formal consultation on final shared 
senior management structure with 
affected group  

January 2011 (end) 
Approval of final structure and job 
descriptions and person specifications for  
Directors and Heads of Service 

February/March 2011 Directors appointed 

Late May/June 2011 Heads of Service appointed 

July 2011 

Job descriptions and person 
specifications for Communications 
Manager, Corporate Performance 
Manager and Programme Manager 
finalised and posts appointed  

The Joint Working Group does not recommend this alternative. 

Information Technology

6.4 We have heard from other councils how critical it is to get compatible IT 
arrangements in place across the two authorities as soon as possible. 
The opportunities available from joint working IT have not yet been 
considered in detail and will need to be addressed at an early stage if 
this business case is approved. 

6.5 Technologies to facilitate the efficient operation of joint management 
arrangements will need be assessed and implemented as a priority – 
e-mail and diary management, remote file access, shared telephony 
etc. – with further opportunities to be identified through a review of IT 
projects currently underway in both councils. 

6.6 Both councils recognise the potential opportunity offered by the end of 
the existing outsourcing contract with Capita at SNC in April 2012 and 
early work will be required to ensure that this opportunity is fully 
harnessed. 

Conclusions

Pace 

6.7 That this shared team should be put in place quickly. 

Page 86



Draft business case published on 21 September 2010 

Page 31 of 38 

7.0 LEGAL ARRANGEMENTS AND ARRANGEMENTS FOR MEMBER 
APPOINTMENTS TO SHARED SENIOR TEAM  

7.1 Section 113 of the Local Government Act 1972 allows a local authority 
to place one or more of its staff at the disposal of another local 
authority to carry out the latter’s functions. This is done by way of legal 
agreement known as a Section 113 agreement. These can be used to 
share single officers, management teams or entire departments. The 
agreement would set out such matters as what work the shared officers 
carry out for both councils, how they are appointed and who pays their 
wages and expenses. The agreement would also deal with issues of 
dispute resolution and termination. The Joint Working Group is 
recommending a rolling arrangement as opposed to a fixed term but 
with reviews in year 2 and at 5 yearly intervals thereafter with a right for 
either council to withdraw with six months notice following the 
unsuccessful resolution of any dispute. A draft of the proposed 
agreement between SNC and CDC is attached at Appendix 6. 

7.2 Councils who already have shared management teams have used 
Section 113 agreements as the legal framework for joint working. They 
are tried and tested. 

7.3 Arrangements are required to allow members of both councils to make 
appointments to joint posts and to deal with other matters relating to 
these joint posts. The councils would need to set up a joint committee 
of elected members to appoint the posts in the senior management 
team.  

7.4 The proposed terms of reference of a Joint Personnel Committee are 
laid out in Appendix 7. This Joint Personnel Committee will be in 
addition to the committees at both councils which deal with HR issues. 
This new committee will need to be convened in early November.  

Conclusions

Legal arrangements and arrangements for members to make 
appointments to shared posts 

7.5 That a Section 113 agreement is the most appropriate mechanism to 
provide the legal framework for joint working and a new Joint 
Committee is required for elected members of both councils to make 
appointments to posts in the shared senior management team and to 
carry out other required functions such as the appraisal of the shared 
Chief Executive. 

Page 87



Draft business case published on 21 September 2010 

Page 32 of 38 

8.0 SUCCESS CRITERIA AND PROJECT RISKS 

Success criteria

8.1 Both councils want to see the following from the project: 

• Financial savings of sufficient scale achieved to prevent the need 
for substantial service cuts 

• Front line services unaffected or improved for the same or reduced 
level of cost 

• Corporate priorities achieved 

• Partnerships performance unaffected or improved 

• Key projects delivered – 

For SNC specifically: 

• Moat Lane regeneration and potential relocation 

• Affordable Choices 

• Customer Service Improvement 

• HS2 collaboration with action groups/mitigation 

For CDC specifically: 

• ‘Eco Bicester’ 

• Bicester town centre development 

• Banbury ‘Brighter Futures’  

• Banbury Cultural Quarter 

For both councils: 

• Hospital services (Horton Hospital, Brackley and Bicester hospitals) 

• Local Development Frameworks. 

Risk assessment

8.2 The Joint Working Group has developed a full project risk register 
including impact/probability scores, mitigating measures and 
responsibilities and this is laid out in full in Appendix 8. 

8.3 The key risks are: 

• Failing to secure member support for a shared management team  

• Other projects suffer due to a lack of capacity 

• The practical arrangements required are not thought through 

8.4 Although these remain scored ‘high’ even after mitigation measures the 
Joint Working Group believes we should tolerate these risks at this 
level going forward, but continue to pay detailed attention to them. 

Page 88



Draft business case published on 21 September 2010 

Page 33 of 38 

Conclusions

Risks 

8.5 That In light of the risk assessment and the extensive learning and 
advice from other councils, the benefits of CDC and SNC sharing a 
senior management team outweigh the risks, subject to the mitigating 
actions being implemented. 

Page 89



Draft business case published on 21 September 2010 

Page 34 of 38 

9.0 POTENTIAL FOR SAVINGS BEYOND THE SENIOR MANAGEMENT 
TEAM 

Fourth tier savings

9.1 A piece of work has been carried out to consider the potential savings 
at the next tier of the organisation (the fourth tier).  Indicatively this 
would bring a further 62 posts into scope as follows: 

  South Northants Cherwell Total 

  
Number 

Cost 
£000s 

Number 
Cost 

£000s 
Number 

Cost 
£000s 

Fourth tier 
posts 

22 1,120 40 1,958 62 3,078

9.2 It is important to stress that the number of fourth tier posts in the new 
officer structure cannot be determined at this stage. If members so 
wished, this would follow on from the appointment of the senior 
management team but it is reasonable to anticipate that fewer ‘middle 
managers’ would be required. 

9.3 The following analysis is provided to give an indication of savings for 
each authority (to add to the savings already laid out in this business 
case) if the middle management structure could be reduced by 15%, 
20% and 25%. There should be no expectation that these savings are 
achievable at this stage. 

  

  

South Northants
 £000s

Cherwell £000s Total £000s

Current cost 1,120 1,958 3,078
  
15% reduction in 
current costs 

168 294 462

20% reduction in 
current costs 

224 392 616

25% reduction in 
current costs 

280 489 769

9.4 There are two further important points to make about the above 
analysis: 

• To achieve the above we need to move away from a 50:50 cost 
sharing model for this level of the organisation, and the reductions 
would need to be on current costs. This approach is different to the 
approach applied to the senior management team but is reasonable as 
we move more into the operational areas where, broadly, Cherwell 
should be picking up a greater charge because they are a larger 
authority. 

Page 90



Draft business case published on 21 September 2010 

Page 35 of 38 

• There will be some middle management posts contained in the above 
analysis which will already be subject to possible deletion as a result of 
the budget proposals that are being worked up and evaluated at each 
authority. 

Further savings

9.5 Savings beyond the fourth tier become increasingly hard to estimate. It 
is expected that there will be savings as teams and systems are 
brought together over time, but to estimate what these are likely to be 
at this stage is difficult and would require significant further work. 

Conclusions

Potential further savings beyond the senior team 

9.6 That savings at the tier below Service Head of 15-25% are probably 
achievable and could deliver a further annual savings ranging from 
£168,000 to £280,000 for SNC and a range of £294,000 to £489,000 
for CDC. Assuming a 20% reduction in costs such action could deliver 
cumulative savings over five years of £1,120,000 to SNC (£224,000 
per annum) and £1,960,000 to CDC (£392,000 per annum). 

Page 91



Draft business case published on 21 September 2010 

Page 36 of 38 

10.0 ENGAGEMENT STRATEGY 

10.1 A detailed and shared engagement strategy is being finalised to ensure 
that all internal and external stakeholders are identified and informed 
as appropriate. Each organisation will continue to follow existing 
internal and external communications process, adopting the following 
principles: 

• Communication should be regular and timely 

• All key messages should be delivered by senior leaders 
wherever possible 

• All communication should be consistent and joint wherever 
practical 

• There should be varied channels for communication to ensure 
accessibility. 

10.2 The following key stakeholder groups have been identified: 

• Elected Members 

• Management teams 

• Trade Unions 

• Employees 

• Press 

• Partner organisations 

• Local community groups 

• Audit commission / other regulators. 

10.3 Key milestones have been identified (primarily decision points). Trade 
Unions are being kept fully briefed and joint press releases agreed 
ahead of any information being released into the public domain.  

10.4 The respective scrutiny meetings in October will receive the initial staff 
consultation feedback which will then be considered by the Cabinet 
and Executive meetings in October. Formal consultation relating to risk 
of redundancy will be invoked if final ratification is received from both 
Councils on November 3rd.   

Page 92



Draft business case published on 21 September 2010 

Page 37 of 38 

11.0 RECOMMENDATIONS 

11.1 The Joint Working Group, subject to consultation with members, staff 
and unions at both councils, recommends to the CDC Executive and 
the SNC Cabinet that CDC and SNC put in place a shared 
management team by the end of March 2011 and that: 

11.2 Both SNC and CDC will remain separate councils and will retain their 
sovereignty. Elected members of both councils will remain in charge of 
decision-making in their respective districts. 

11.3 CDC and SNC share a senior management team comprising twelve 
posts:  a Chief Executive, three Directors and eight Heads of Service 
and that the final structure and responsibilities of the senior 
management team be agreed between the shared Chief Executive, 
once appointed, and members of both councils before further 
appointments are made. 

11.4 A Joint Personnel Committee be set up and that this committee, 
supported by external recruitment consultants, recommends the 
appointment of the shared Chief Executive to both full Councils and 
appoints to the Directors and Heads of Service. 

11.5 The shared Chief Executive be appointed in December, the Directors in 
February 2011 and the Heads of Service in March 2011.  

11.6 SNC and CDC share three further posts – Communications Manager, 
Corporate Performance Manager and Programme Manager – and that 
these posts be appointed to as soon as possible after end March 2011. 

11.7 Officers appointed as the shared Chief Executive, Directors and Heads 
of Service be appointed on new terms and conditions to be agreed by 
the Joint Personnel Committee. 

11.8 Officers appointed to the three other shared posts retain their current 
terms and conditions, with further consideration given to the 
remuneration levels for those roles in recognition of the new 
requirement to work across both councils.  

11.9 It is expected that all successful internal candidates will remain 
employed by their original employer, though in exceptional cases 
(particularly in the light of recommendation 11.8) they may be 
employed by the other authority. 

11.10 CDC and SNC both sign a Section 113 agreement to allow them to 
share a senior management team and three other posts in the way 
proposed. 

11.11 The Joint Working Group continues, but with new terms of reference, to 
oversee the implementation of the above recommendations. 

Page 93



Draft business case published on 21 September 2010 

Page 38 of 38 

11.12 SNC and CDC continue with their existing shared arrangements for 
service delivery with other local authorities, and these are reviewed 
either as they come up for renewal or as appropriate. 

11.13 CDC and SNC agree to consider in due course individual business 
cases for integrating posts at the tier below Service Heads, and teams 
below that. 

11.14 Once SNC and CDC decide to consider service level business cases, 
they work towards a common set of terms and conditions for all staff 
below Service Heads so that these can be put in place early on. 

11.15 Both councils receive a post project report in March 2012, reviewing 
the implementation of these recommendations.  

Page 94



Page 95



Page 96



Page 97



Page 98



Page 99



Page 100



Page 101



Page 102



Page 103



Page 104



Page 105



Page 106



Page 107



Page 108



Page 109



Page 110



Page 111



Page 112



Page 113



Page 114



Page 115



Page 116



Page 117



Page 118



Page 119



Page 120



Page 121



Page 122



Page 123



Page 124



Page 125



Page 126



Page 127



Page 128



Page 129



Page 130



Page 131



Page 132



Page 133



Page 134



Page 135



Page 136



Page 137



Page 138



Page 139



Page 140



Page 141



Page 142



Page 143



Page 144



Page 145



Page 146



Page 147



Page 148



Page 149



Page 150



Page 151



Page 152



Page 153



Page 154



Page 155



Page 156



Page 157



Page 158



Page 159



Page 160



Page 161



Page 162



Page 163



Page 164



Page 165



Page 166



Page 167



Page 168



Page 169



Page 170



Page 171



Page 172



Page 173



Page 174



Page 175



Page 176



Page 177



Page 178



Page 179



Page 180



Page 181



Page 182



Page 183



Page 184



Page 185



Page 186



Page 187



Page 188



Page 189



Page 190



Page 191



Page 192



Page 193



Page 194



Page 195



Page 196



Page 197



Page 198



Page 199



Page 200



Page 201



Page 202



Page 203



Page 204


	Agenda
	Pay Grades April 2010 to April 2011
	5 Minutes
	6 Paternity Leave Policy Update
	Paternity Policy

	7 Volunteers Policy
	Volunteers Policy

	8 Job Evaluation
	9 Staff Satisfaction Survey
	Staff Satisfaction Survey corporate action plan 2010

	10 Employment Statistics Qtr 1 - 2010/2011
	Q1 Quarterly Staff Turnover Appendix 1
	Q1 Employment Stats Appendix 2

	11 Business Case from the Joint Working Group for a shared senior management team between South Northamptonshire Council and Cherwell District Council
	Draft business case appendices published 21st september


